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(Print or Type Responses)

1. Name and Address of Reporting Person *

Singer Robert S
2. Issuer Name and Ticker or Trading

Symbol
ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO
/DE/ [ANF]

5. Relationship of Reporting Person(s) to
Issuer

(Check all applicable)

__X__ Director _____ 10% Owner
__X__ Officer (give title
below)

_____ Other (specify
below)

President and COO

(Last) (First) (Middle)

6301 FITCH PATH

3. Date of Earliest Transaction
(Month/Day/Year)
06/02/2005

(Street)

NEW ALBANY, OH 43054

4. If Amendment, Date Original
Filed(Month/Day/Year)

6. Individual or Joint/Group Filing(Check
Applicable Line)
_X_ Form filed by One Reporting Person
___ Form filed by More than One Reporting
Person

(City) (State) (Zip) Table I - Non-Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned

1.Title of
Security
(Instr. 3)

2. Transaction Date
(Month/Day/Year)

2A. Deemed
Execution Date, if
any
(Month/Day/Year)

3.
Transaction
Code
(Instr. 8)

4. Securities Acquired
(A) or Disposed of (D)
(Instr. 3, 4 and 5)

5. Amount of
Securities
Beneficially
Owned
Following
Reported
Transaction(s)
(Instr. 3 and 4)

6.
Ownership
Form: Direct
(D) or
Indirect (I)
(Instr. 4)

7. Nature of
Indirect
Beneficial
Ownership
(Instr. 4)

Code V Amount

(A)
or
(D) Price

Class A
Common
Stock

06/02/2005 M 37,500 A $
34.34 78,800 D

Class A
Common
Stock

06/02/2005 S 22,500 D $ 62.1 56,300 D

Class A
Common
Stock

06/02/2005 S 15,000 D $ 62.2 41,300 D

Reminder: Report on a separate line for each class of securities beneficially owned directly or indirectly.
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Persons who respond to the collection of
information contained in this form are not
required to respond unless the form
displays a currently valid OMB control
number.
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Table II - Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned
(e.g., puts, calls, warrants, options, convertible securities)

1. Title of
Derivative
Security
(Instr. 3)

2.
Conversion
or Exercise
Price of
Derivative
Security

3. Transaction Date
(Month/Day/Year)

3A. Deemed
Execution Date, if
any
(Month/Day/Year)

4.
Transaction
Code
(Instr. 8)

5. Number of
Derivative
Securities
Acquired (A)
or Disposed of
(D)
(Instr. 3, 4,
and 5)

6. Date Exercisable and
Expiration Date
(Month/Day/Year)

7. Title and Amount of
Underlying Securities
(Instr. 3 and 4)

8. Price of
Derivative
Security
(Instr. 5)

9. Number of
Derivative
Securities
Beneficially
Owned
Following
Reported
Transaction(s)
(Instr. 4)

10.
Ownership
Form of
Derivative
Security:
Direct (D)
or Indirect
(I)
(Instr. 4)

11. Nature
of Indirect
Beneficial
Ownership
(Instr. 4)

Code V (A) (D)

Date
Exercisable

Expiration
Date Title

Amount
or
Number
of Shares

Stock
Option -
Right to
Buy

$ 34.34 06/02/2005 M 37,500 (1) 05/17/2014
Class A
Common
Stock

37,500 $ 0 112,500 D

Reporting Owners

Reporting Owner Name / Address
Relationships

Director 10% Owner Officer Other

Singer Robert S
6301 FITCH PATH
NEW ALBANY, OH 43054

  X   President and COO

Signatures
 By: Robert J. Tannous,
Attorney-in-Fact   06/03/2005

**Signature of Reporting Person Date

Explanation of Responses:
* If the form is filed by more than one reporting person, see Instruction 4(b)(v).

** Intentional misstatements or omissions of facts constitute Federal Criminal Violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 15 U.S.C. 78ff(a).

(1) Option vests 25% per year beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant.

Note: File three copies of this Form, one of which must be manually signed. If space is insufficient, see Instruction 6 for procedure.
Potential persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays
a currently valid OMB number. D VALIGN="bottom">  Consolidated
Total

Net sales

  $1,672.6  $529.7  $1,875.5  $(695.5)  $3,382.3 
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Cost of goods sold

   1,163.9   328.9   1,375.2   (689.0)   2,179.0 

Restructuring and related charges

   �      �      0.4   �      0.4   

Gross profit

   508.7   200.8   499.9   (6.5)   1,202.9 

Operating expenses:

Selling

   206.3   63.8   248.2   (0.6)   517.7 

General and administrative
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   156.0   30.8   51.3   �      238.1 

Research and development

   24.3   2.0   10.6   �      36.9 

Acquisition and integration related charges

   33.9   3.0   7.3   �      44.2 

Restructuring and related charges

   30.7   0.3   (9.1)   �      21.9   

Total operating expense

   451.2   99.9   308.3   (0.6)   858.8   
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Operating income (loss)

   57.5   100.9   191.6   (5.9)   344.1 

Interest expense

   180.8   1.1   24.6   �      206.5 

Other (income) expense, net

   (175.6)   (114.0)   4.0   291.2   5.6   
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Income from operations before income taxes

   52.3   213.8   163.0   (297.1)   132.0 

Income tax expense (benefit)

   (74.9)   44.3   36.2   (0.8)   4.8   
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Net income (loss)

   127.2   169.5   126.8   (296.3)   127.2 

Less: Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest

   0.2   0.2   0.2   (0.4)   0.2   

Net income (loss) attributable to controlling interest

  $127.0  $169.3  $126.6  $(295.9)  $127.0   

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 7



F-104

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 8



Table of Contents

SB/RH HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income

Nine Month Period Ended June 28, 2015

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in millions)

Spectrum Brands Inc.
without

consolidated
entities

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Nonguarantor
SubsidiariesEliminations

Consolidated
Total

Net income $ 127.2 $ 169.5 $ 126.8 $ (296.3) $ 127.2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation gain (loss) (68.6) (69.2) (69.2) 138.4 (68.6) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments (8.6) (5.8) (5.8) 11.6 (8.6) 
Defined benefit pension gain (loss) 2.8 2.8 2.8 (5.6) 2.8

Other comprehensive income (loss) (74.4) (72.2) (72.2) 144.4 (74.4) 

Comprehensive income 52.8 97.3 54.6 (151.9) 52.8
Less: Comprehensive income (loss) attributable
to non-controlling interest 0.2 0.2 0.2 (0.4) 0.2

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
controlling interest $ 52.6 $ 97.1 $ 54.4 $ (151.5) $ 52.6

F-105
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SB/RH HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Nine Month Period Ended June 29, 2014

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in millions)

Spectrum Brands Inc.
without

consolidated
entities

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Nonguarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations

Consolidated
Total

Net sales $ 455.0 $ 1,560.0 $ 1,827.0 $ (591.2) $ 3,250.8
Cost of goods sold 324.4 1,044.5 1,310.5 (589.8) 2,089.6
Restructuring and related charges �  2.5 0.8 �  3.3

Gross profit 130.6 513.0 515.7 (1.4) 1,157.9
Operating expenses:
Selling 55.9 197.3 249.1 (0.5) 501.8
General and administrative 34.9 123.4 67.0 �  225.3
Research and development 16.1 9.2 9.9 �  35.2
Acquisition and integration
related charges 7.4 7.1 �  �  14.5
Restructuring and related charges 6.9 2.8 3.0 �  12.7

Total operating expense 121.2 339.8 329.0 (0.5) 789.5

Operating income 9.4 173.2 186.7 (0.9) 368.4
Interest expense 131.0 0.2 20.5 �  151.7
Other (income) expense, net (152.4) (128.8) 2.5 283.1 4.4

Income (loss) from operations
before income taxes 30.8 301.8 163.7 (284.0) 212.3
Income tax expense (benefit) (137.6) 148.0 33.4 �  43.8

Net income (loss) 168.4 153.8 130.3 (284.0) 168.5
Less: Net income (loss)
attributable to non-controlling
interest 0.2 0.2 0.2 (0.4) 0.2

Net income (loss) attributable to
controlling interest $ 168.2 $ 153.6 $ 130.1 $ (283.6) $ 168.3
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SB/RH HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income

Nine Month Period Ended June 29, 2014

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in millions)

Spectrum Brands Inc.
without

consolidated
entities

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Nonguarantor
SubsidiariesEliminations

Consolidated
Total

Net income $ 168.4 $ 153.8 $ 130.3 $ (284.0) $ 168.5
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation gain (loss) 5.6 5.6 6.0 (11.6) 5.6
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments (1.6) (0.9) (0.8) 1.7 (1.6) 
Defined benefit pension gain (loss) 0.5 0.5 0.5 (1.0) 0.5

Other comprehensive income (loss) 4.5 5.2 5.7 (10.9) 4.5

Comprehensive income (loss) 172.9 159.0 136.0 (294.9) 173.0
Less: Comprehensive income (loss) attributable
to non-controlling interest 0.4 0.1 0.1 (0.2) 0.4

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
controlling interest $ 172.5 $ 158.9 $ 135.9 $ (294.7) $ 172.6

F-107
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SB/RH HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Nine Month Period Ended June 28, 2015

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in millions)

Spectrum Brands Inc.
without

consolidated
entities

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Nonguarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations

Consolidated
Total

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities $ (544.1) $ (355.9) $ (1,358.3) $ 2,094.7 $ (163.6) 
Cash flows from investing
activities:
Purchases of property, plant
and equipment (25.0) (7.3) (17.2) �  (49.5) 
Acquisition of Tell
Manufacturing, net of cash
acquired (29.2) �  �  �  (29.2) 
Acquisition of European
IAMS and Eukanuba, net of
cash acquired �  �  (115.7) �  (115.7) 
Acquisition of Salix Animal
Health, net of cash acquired (147.8) �  �  �  (147.8) 
Acquisition of Armored
AutoGroup, net of cash
acquired (900.5) �  �  �  (900.5) 
Proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment 0.1 �  1.2 �  1.3
Other investing activities �  �  (0.9) �  (0.9) 

Net cash used by investing
activities (1,102.4) (7.3) (132.6) �  (1,242.3) 
Cash flows from financing
activities:
Proceeds from issuance of
Term Loan, net of discount 1,444.9 �  �  �  1,444.9
Proceeds from issuance of
6.125% Notes 250.0 �  �  �  250.0
Proceeds from issuance of
5.75% Notes 1,000.0 �  �  �  1,000.0

340.2 �  �  �  340.2
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Proceeds from Euro Term
Loan
Proceeds from CAD Term
Loan 60.9 �  �  �  60.9
Payment of debt instruments,
excluding ABL revolving
credit facility (1,989.8) �  (292.1) �  (2,281.9) 
Debt issuance costs (37.3) �  �  �  (37.3) 
Other debt financing, net 33.5 �  �  �  33.5
Revolving credit facility, net 47.5 �  �  �  47.5
Cash dividends paid to parent (51.0) �  �  �  (51.0) 
Share based tax withholding
payments, net of proceeds
upon vesting (1.9) �  �  �  (1.9) 
Capital contribution from
Parent 528.3 �  �  �  528.3
Proceeds from (advances
related to) intercompany
transactions 18.9 369.0 1,706.8 (2,094.7) �  

Net cash provided (used) by
financing activities 1,644.2 369.0 1,414.7 (2,094.7) 1,333.2
Effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and cash
equivalents �  �  (13.0) �  (13.0) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (2.3) 5.8 (89.2) �  (85.7) 
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period 4.8 11.2 176.9 �  192.9

Cash and cash equivalents,
end of period $ 2.5 $ 17.0 $ 87.7 $ �  $ 107.2

F-108
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SB/RH HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Nine Month Period Ended June 29, 2014

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in millions)

Spectrum Brands Inc.
without

consolidated
entities

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Nonguarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations

Consolidated
Total

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities $ 317.1 $ (300.9) $ (61.4) $ (4.0) $ (49.2) 
Cash flows from investing
activities:
Purchases of property, plant
and equipment (17.0) (18.6) (15.3) �  (50.9) 
Acquisition of Liquid Fence �  (25.3) �  �  (25.3) 
Proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment �  0.1 9.0 �  9.1
Other investing activities �  (0.2) �  �  (0.2) 

Net cash used by investing
activities (17.0) (44.0) (6.3) �  (67.3) 
Cash flows from financing
activities:
Proceeds from issuance of
Term Loan 214.9 �  308.8 �  523.7
Payment of senior credit
facilities, excluding ABL
revolving credit facility (567.5) �  �  �  (567.5) 
Debt issuance costs (0.5) �  (5.0) �  (5.5) 
Other debt financing, net �  �  9.5 �  9.5
ABL revolving credit facility,
net 110.0 �  �  �  110.0
Cash dividends paid to parent (42.0) �  �  �  (42.0) 
Share based tax withholding
payments, net of proceeds
upon vesting (17.7) (6.4) (2.4) �  (26.5) 
Proceeds from (advances
related to) intercompany
transactions 1.2 347.6 (352.8) 4.0 �  
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Net cash provided (used) by
financing activities (301.6) 341.2 (41.9) 4.0 1.7
Effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and cash
equivalents �  �  �  �  �  

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (1.5) (3.7) (109.6) �  (114.8) 
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period 3.8 5.4 189.0 �  198.2

Cash and cash equivalents, end
of period $ 2.3 $ 1.7 $ 79.4 $ �  $ 83.4

F-109
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors of Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc. which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive loss, shareholders� equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2014 and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor�s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor�s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc. at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Stamford, Connecticut

April 17, 2015
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Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands except share and per share amounts)

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 47,948 $ 26,036
Restricted cash 3,676 �  
Accounts receivable, net 69,845 60,324
Inventories 63,305 34,043
Other current assets 13,459 11,676

Total current assets 198,233 132,079
Property, plant and equipment, net 31,008 28,936
Goodwill 523,363 358,826
Intangible assets, net 481,689 313,470
Deferred financing costs and other assets, net 2,257 3,719

Total assets $ 1,236,550 $ 837,030

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 16,279 $ 6,989
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 46,023 24,684
Current portion of long-term debt, less discount 3,000 3,000

Total current liabilities 65,302 34,673
Long-term debt, net of premium, discount and current portion 811,323 550,582
Other liabilities 4,161 2,500
Deferred income taxes 140,726 89,610

Total liabilities 1,021,512 677,365

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Shareholders� Equity:

Series A Preferred Stock ($0.01 par value, 150,000 shares
authorized, 67,312 and no shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively) 1 �  
Common stock ($0.01 par value, 400,000,000 and 365,000,000
shares authorized, 288,384,891 and 265,745,000 shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively) 2,884 2,658
Additional paid-in capital 352,693 263,927
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Accumulated deficit (123,440) (98,971) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (17,100) (7,949) 

Total shareholders� equity 215,038 159,665

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 1,236,550 $ 837,030

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-111
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Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(In thousands)

Year ended
December 31,

2014

Year ended
December 31,

2013

Year ended
December 31,

2012
Net sales $ 409,979 $ 289,956 $ 306,468
Cost of products sold 219,177 158,049 167,570
Cost of products sold�acquisition related 6,806 �  �  

Gross profit 183,996 131,907 138,898
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses 60,931 40,712 48,306
Advertising costs 28,807 27,787 31,072
Research and development costs 2,905 2,474 2,211
Depreciation and amortization 47,105 36,788 36,701
Intangible asset and goodwill impairment 7,000 �  24,117

Total operating expenses 146,748 107,761 142,407

Operating profit (loss) 37,248 24,146 (3,509) 
Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense 71,533 48,024 48,887
Other expense, net 1,260 285 443

Loss before income taxes (35,545) (24,163) (52,839) 
Benefit for income taxes 11,076 10,775 7,040

Net loss $ (24,469) $ (13,388) $ (45,799) 

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain (9,151) (9,389) 3,807

Comprehensive loss $ (33,620) $ (22,777) $ (41,992) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-112
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Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY

(In thousands)

Common
Stock

Series A
Preferred Stock

SharesAmount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss)
Income

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Shareholders�

EquityShares Amount
Balance at
December 31, 2011 265,795 $ 2,658 �  $ �  $ 263,421 $ (2,367) $ (39,784) $ 223,928
Share based
compensation �  �  �  �  266 �  �  266
Translation adjustment �  �  �  �  �  3,807 �  3,807
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  (45,799) (45,799) 

Balance at
December 31, 2012 265,795 2,658 �  �  263,687 1,440 (85,583) 182,202
Share based
compensation �  �  �  �  290 �  �  290
Repurchase of
common stock (50) �  �  �  (50) �  �  (50) 
Translation
adjustments �  �  �  �  �  (9,389) �  (9,389) 
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  (13,388) (13,388) 

Balance at
December 31, 2013 265,745 2,658 �  �  263,927 (7,949) (98,971) 159,665
Issuance of common
stock�IDQ Acquisition 23,108 231 �  �  22,482 �  �  22,713
Sale of preferred stock �  �  62 1 61,999 �  �  62,000
Issuance of preferred
stock�IDQ acquisition �  �  5 �  5,693 �  �  5,693
Share based
compensation �  �  �  �  (840) �  �  (840) 
Repurchase of
common stock (468) (5) �  �  (480) �  �  (485) 
Repurchase of
preferred stock �  �  �  �  (88) �  �  (88) 
Translation
adjustments �  �  �  �  �  (9,151) �  (9,151) 
Net loss �  �  �  �  �  �  (24,469) (24,469) 

288,385 $ 2,884 67 $ 1 $ 352,693 $ (17,100) $ (123,440) $ 215,038
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Balance at
December 31, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year ended
December 31,

2014

Year ended
December 31,

2013

Year ended
December 31,

2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (24,469) $ (13,388) $ (45,799) 
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 57,992 47,846 46,813
Intangible asset and goodwill impairment 7,000 �  24,117
Share based compensation (840) 290 266
Deferred income taxes (20,583) (15,210) (10,612) 
Restructuring and other charges 1,243 63 157
Cash effects of changes, net of acquisition effects in:
Accounts receivable 11,521 8,955 (15,302) 
Inventories (1,609) 9,276 (5,194) 
Due (to)/from Clorox �  (46) 11,864
Other current assets 3,410 781 (753) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (13,240) (10,622) 10,509
Income taxes 7 1,641 (4,436) 
Other 155 (1,338) (1,384) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 20,587 28,248 10,246

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of IDQ Acquisition Corp, net of cash acquired (40,234) �  �  
Capital expenditures (5,692) (4,305) (7,698) 
Other acquisitions, net (1,797) (3,084) �  

Net cash used in investing activities (47,723) (7,389) (7,698) 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under revolver 17,000 23,000 64,001
Payments on revolver (17,000) (23,000) (64,001) 
Principal payments on notes payable (12,000) (3,611) (3,000) 
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 62,000 �  �  
Repurchase of preferred stock (88) �  �  
Repurchase of common stock (485) (50) �  
Deferred financing costs �  �  (350) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 49,427 (3,661) (3,350) 
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Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (379) (170) 75

Net increase (decrease) in cash 21,912 17,028 (727) 
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 26,036 9,008 9,735

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period $ 47,948 $ 26,036 $ 9,008

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid for interest $ 71,101 $ 43,878 $ 45,314

Cash paid for income taxes $ 6,996 $ 4,099 $ 8,207

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Note 1�The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc. (�Armored AutoGroup�, �AAG� or �the Company�) is a consumer products company
consisting of industry leading and highly recognizable brands in the automotive aftermarket appearance products:
Armor All®; performance chemicals categories, STP®; and, newly acquired products in the do-it-yourself (DIY) air
conditioner recharge and retrofit kits and related products: A/C PRO, Arctic Freeze®, Sub Zero®, and Super Seal®
Stop Leak.

On March 17, 2014, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Armored AutoGroup, Inc. and AAG IDQ
Acquisition Corporation, acquired a 100% equity interest in IDQ Acquisition Corp. (�IDQ� or �IDQ Acq. Corp.�). IDQ is
a leading manufacturer of do-it-yourself air conditioner recharge and retrofit kits and related products for the
automotive aftermarket. For the year ended December 31, 2014 net sales for IDQ were approximately $145 million.
As of December 31, 2014, total assets attributable to the IDQ operations were approximately $446 million.

Armored AutoGroup delivers its products to distributors, resellers and end users (collectively the customers) through
its direct operations in the United States, Canada, Mexico, Australia, China and the United Kingdom and distributor
relationships in approximately 50 countries. The Armor All and STP brands offer multiple automotive appearance and
performance chemicals that can be found in most of the major developed countries around the world. IDQ products
are sold in over 25,000 retail stores principally in the United States under the brands A/C PRO, Arctic Freeze®, Sub
Zero®, and Super Seal® Stop Leak.

In September 2010, Viking Acquisition Inc., an entity owned by affiliates of Avista Capital Holdings, L.P. (�Avista�),
entered into an agreement to acquire the AutoCare Products Business, Armor All, STP and certain other brands from
Clorox pursuant to the terms of a Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 21, 2010 (the �Acquisition�). The
Acquisition closed on November 5, 2010 and included employees in the United States and other countries dedicated to
the Company, related product patent and developed technology and certain other assets, including the manufacturing
facilities located in Painesville, Ohio and Wales, U.K. Viking Acquisition Inc. was subsequently renamed as Armored
AutoGroup Inc. (�AAG Inc.�). The Company indirectly owns 91.3% of AAG Inc.�s issued and outstanding capital stock
through its direct subsidiary and AAG Inc.�s direct parent, Armored AutoGroup Intermediate Inc. (�Intermediate�). The
Company granted a 7.1% stake in the common equity of the Company to Kinderhook Industries on March 17, 2014,
as a component of the consideration for the sale of its ownership interest in IDQ to the Company. In addition,
members of IDQ�s management acquired an additional 1.6% common equity interest as a component of the
consideration for the sale of their ownership interest in IDQ.

References to �Armored AutoGroup� or the �Company� herein, refer collectively to Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc., as
well as all of its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise specified.

Basis of Presentation
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The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (�U.S. GAAP�). The Company�s fiscal year end is December 31. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
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The Company�s appearance and air conditioner products sales are seasonal and can be impacted by weather. Sales are
typically higher in the first half of the calendar year as the Company�s customers purchase inventory for the spring and
summer seasons when weather is warmer than in the northern hemisphere in the fall and winter months. This pattern
is largely reflective of our customers� seasonal purchasing patterns, as well as the timing of our promotional activities.
Weather can also influence consumer behavior, especially for appearance and air conditioner products. Both product
lines sell best during warm and dry weather, and less if weather is cold and wet. For these reasons, among others, the
Company�s results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of future quarterly results and, accordingly,
period-to-period comparisons should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance. The Company builds
moderate levels of working capital and inventory in advance of and during the peak selling season. Working capital is
also impacted by increases in accounts receivable, which increase significantly during the peak selling period and are
typically lowest in the fourth quarter of the year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Specific areas, among others, requiring the
application of management�s estimates and judgment include assumptions pertaining to allowances for excess and
obsolete inventory, provisions for cash discounts on amounts due from customers, fair values assigned to assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with acquisitions (See Note 7), accruals for consumer and trade
promotion programs, future product volume and pricing estimates, future cash flows utilized in impairment testing of
goodwill and other long lived assets, creditworthiness of customers and potential income tax. Actual results could
differ materially from the estimates and assumptions made.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased
to be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
$47.9 million, and $26.0 million, respectively, which included a money market account with an initial term of less
than three months.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash as of December 31, 2014 amounted to $3.7 million and relates to amounts held in escrow pursuant to a
license and settlement agreement, and funds deposited in an interest reserve account in accordance with the terms of
the $45 million senior secured notes (See Note 9).

Pursuant to a �License and Settlement Agreement� dated April 16, 2008, IDQ was obligated to fund in the form of a
cash payment a royalty fee based on the sale of certain products which the Licensor claimed utilized its enforceable
patent. During 2011, IDQ received notification that the U.S. Court upheld the patent in dispute and as a result, after
the Licensor complies with certain requirements of the License and Settlement Agreement, IDQ will distribute the
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escrowed funds.

On July 26, 2013, the patent expired which terminated the License and Settlement Agreement, releasing IDQ from its
obligation to make royalty payments as of that date. As of December 31, 2014, the escrowed funds amounted to $0.5
million. Pursuant to the indenture governing the $45 million senior secured notes, the Company reserved the cash
interest which was paid to those note holders on April 1, 2015. During September 2014, those funds totaling $3.2
million were deposited into an interest reserve account maintained with the collateral agent and are included within
restricted cash at December 31, 2014.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies are the functional currencies for substantially all of the Company�s foreign operations, with the
exception of the Company�s United Kingdom (�U.K.�) operation, whose functional currency was the U.S. dollar, during
2014 and prior. Subsequently, in early 2015 the Company�s U.K. entity switched their functional currency from the
U.S. dollar to the British Pound sterling. An entity�s functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. Management determined in early 2015 that due to a change in the manner in
which the U. K. entity operates, that a switch in the functional currency to the British Pound sterling from the U. S.
dollar was necessary.

When the transactional currency is different than the functional currency, transaction gains and losses are included as
a component of other expense, net in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss. Assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the respective balance sheet
reporting date. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate during the period. Gains and losses on
foreign currency translations are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss. Deferred taxes
are not provided on cumulative translation adjustments as the Company expects earnings of its foreign subsidiary to
be indefinitely reinvested.

Accounts Receivable, net

The Company records accounts receivable at net realizable value. This value includes allowances for discounts and
estimated uncollectible accounts to reflect losses anticipated on accounts receivable balances. The allowance for
uncollectible accounts is based on historical write-offs, an analysis of past due accounts based on the contractual terms
of the receivables, and the economic status of customers, if known. The Company believes that the allowance is
sufficient to cover uncollectible amounts; however, there can be no assurance that unanticipated future business
conditions of customers will not have a negative impact on its results of operations. Accounts receivable are written
off against the allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts should we conclude their collection is improbable.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of accounts receivable. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable, which are
typically unsecured, are limited to an extent due to the large number of entities comprising the Company�s customer
base and their dispersion across many geographical regions. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of the
financial condition of its customers and requires credit enhancements, such as letters of credit and bank guarantees, in
certain circumstances.

The Company does, however, sell a significant portion of its products through third party distributors, resellers and
significant retail customers (See Note 3) and, as a result, maintains at times significant receivables balances with these
parties. If the financial condition of these distributors, resellers or significant retail customers should deteriorate
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substantially, the Company�s results of operations, financial position and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Cash at times may exceed FDIC insurable limits.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market under a first-in, first-out (�FIFO�) basis, except for the Company�s
U. K. operation�s inventories which represent approximately 7% of total net inventory and are stated
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at average cost. When necessary, the Company provides allowances to adjust the carrying value of its inventory to the
lower of cost or market, including any costs to sell or dispose. Consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive
inventory levels, product deterioration and other factors in evaluating net realizable value for the purposes of
determining the lower of cost or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization expenses are calculated by the straight-line method using the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
Routine repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over a period
no longer than the lease term. Internal and external costs incurred in developing or obtaining computer software for
internal use are capitalized in property, plant and equipment and are amortized on a straight-line basis, over the
estimated useful life of the software. General and administrative costs related to developing or obtaining such software
are expensed as incurred.

The following table provides estimated useful lives generally assigned to property, plant and equipment by asset
classification:

Classification
Expected Useful

Lives
Land improvements 10 - 30 years
Buildings 7 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 2 - 15 years
Computer software 3 - 7 years
Furniture, fixtures, and office equipment 5 - 7 years
Vehicles 3 - 7 years
Molds and dies 3 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of asset life or

remaining lease term
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for possible impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
occur that indicate that the carrying amount of an asset (or asset group) may not be recoverable. The Company�s
impairment review requires significant management judgment including estimating the future success of product lines,
future sales volumes, revenue and expense growth rates, alternative uses for the assets and estimated proceeds from
the disposal of the assets. The Company conducts reviews of idle and underutilized equipment when events or
circumstances arise indicating that future cash flows are insufficient to recover the book value of asset groups, and
reviews business plans for possible impairment indicators. Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of the asset
(or asset group) exceeds its estimated future undiscounted cash flows. When impairment is indicated, an impairment
charge is recorded for the difference between the asset�s (or asset group�s) book value and its estimated fair value.
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Depending on the asset, estimated fair value may be determined either by use of a discounted cash flow (�DCF�) model
or by reference to estimated selling values of assets in similar condition. The use of different assumptions would
increase or decrease the estimated fair value of assets and would increase or decrease any impairment measurement.
There have been no instances of impairment identified.

Acquisitions

The Company accounts for acquired businesses using the purchase method of accounting. Under the purchase method,
the Company�s consolidated financial statements include the operations of an acquired
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business from the date of acquisition. In addition, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at the date
of acquisition at their respective estimated fair values, with any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair
values of the net assets acquired recorded as goodwill.

Determining the fair value of certain assets and liabilities acquired is judgmental in nature and often involves the use
of significant estimates and assumptions. The Company typically uses an income method to estimate the fair value of
intangible assets, which is based on forecasts of the expected future cash flows attributable to the respective assets.
Significant estimates and assumptions inherent in the valuations reflect a consideration of other marketplace
participants and include the amount and timing of future cash flows, the underlying product life cycles, the economic
barriers to entry and the discount rate applied to the cash flows. Actual results may differ from our estimates.

Finite Lived Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets with finite lives (patents, customer relationships and licensing arrangements) is
recognized over estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 16 years, which the Company believes reasonably represents
the time period in which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed or otherwise realized. The
Company has experienced a negligible attrition rate in its customer base, and is not able to identify a reliable pattern
of attrition and, as such, is utilizing the straight-line amortization method to amortize customer relationship intangible
assets. Finite lived intangible assets are reviewed for possible impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. There have been no
instances of impairment identified.

Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

The Company tests its trademarks and brand names with indefinite lives for impairment annually as of the first day of
the fourth quarter, unless there are indications during an interim period that these assets are more likely than not to
have become impaired. For trademarks and brand names with indefinite lives, impairment occurs when the carrying
amount of an asset is greater than its estimated fair value. An impairment charge is recorded for the difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value. The Company uses an income approach, the relief-from-royalty
method, to estimate the fair value of its trademarks and trade names with indefinite lives. This method assumes that, in
lieu of ownership, a third party would be willing to pay a royalty in order to obtain the rights to use the comparable
asset. The determination of the fair values of trademarks and brand name assets with indefinite lives requires
significant judgments in determining both the assets� estimated cash flows as well as the appropriate discount and
royalty rates applied to those cash flows to determine fair value. Changes in such estimates or the application of
alternative assumptions could produce different results.

Goodwill

The Company tests its goodwill for impairment annually as of the first day of the fourth quarter unless there are
indications during an interim period that these assets are more likely than not to have become impaired. The Company
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has four geographical reporting units under AAG Inc. entity and one reporting unit under the IDQ entity. The first step
of the goodwill impairment test is to compare the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying amount to determine
if there is potential impairment. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, the second step of
the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss.

The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit�s goodwill with
the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit�s goodwill exceeds the implied fair
value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that
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excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in
a business combination. That is, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the assets and liabilities of that
unit (including any unrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business
combination at the date of the evaluation and the fair value was the purchase price paid to acquire the reporting unit.

The Company estimates the fair value of reporting units using a weighting of fair values derived from an income
approach and a market approach. Determining the fair value of a reporting unit under the first step of the goodwill
impairment test and determining the fair value of individual assets and liabilities of a reporting unit (including
unrecognized intangible assets) under the second step of the goodwill impairment test is inherently subjective in
nature and often involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions based on known facts and circumstances at
the time the Company performs the valuation. The use of different assumptions, inputs and judgments or changes in
circumstances could materially affect the results of the valuation and could have a significant impact on whether or
not an impairment charge is recognized and the magnitude of any such charge.

Income approach�To determine fair value, the Company uses a DCF approach for each of the reporting units. Under
this approach, the Company estimates the future cash flows of each reporting unit and discounts these cash flows at a
rate of return that reflects their relative risk. The cash flows used in the DCF are consistent with the Company�s
long-range forecasts, and give consideration to historic and projected long-term business trends and strategies. The
other key estimates and factors used in the DCF include, but are not limited to, discount rates, future sales volumes,
revenue and expense growth rates, changes in working capital, capital expenditure forecasts, foreign exchange rates,
currency devaluation, inflation, and a perpetuity growth rate.

Market approach�The Company uses the guideline public company method to select reasonably similar/guideline
publicly traded companies for each of the Company�s reporting units. Using the guideline public company method, the
Company calculates earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (�EBITDA�) multiples for each of the
public companies using both historical and forecasted EBITDA figures. By applying these multiples to the appropriate
historical and forecasted EBITDA figures for each reporting unit, fair value estimates are calculated.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized when title to the product, ownership and risk of loss transfer to the customer, which can be on the
date of shipment or the date of receipt by the customer and when all of the following have occurred: a firm sales
arrangement exists, pricing is fixed and determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Revenue includes shipping
and handling costs, which generally are included in the list price to the customer. Taxes collected from customers and
remitted to governmental authorities are not included in sales. A provision for payment discounts and product return
allowances is recorded as a reduction of sales in the same period that the revenue is recognized.

The Company routinely commits to on-going and one-time trade promotion programs with customers, consisting
primarily of customer pricing allowances, merchandising funds and consumer coupons offered through various
programs to customers and consumers. Accruals for expected payouts under these programs are included as accrued
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marketing and promotion in the accrued expenses and other liabilities line item in the consolidated balance sheets and
are recorded as a reduction of sales in the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss.
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Amounts received by the Company from the licensing of certain trademarks are recorded as deferred revenue on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and are recognized in net sales on a straight-line basis over the term of the licensing
agreement when the underlying royalties are earned.

Cost of Products Sold

Cost of products sold is primarily comprised of direct materials and supplies consumed in the manufacturing of
product, as well as manufacturing labor, depreciation expense, direct overhead expense necessary to acquire and
convert the purchased materials and supplies into finished product, contract manufacturing costs, and provisions for
inventory losses (including losses relating to excess and obsolete inventory). Cost of products sold also includes the
cost to distribute products to customers, inbound freight costs, internal transfer costs, warehousing costs and other
shipping and handling activity, as well as costs associated with developing and designing new packaging.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expense is primarily comprised of marketing expenses, selling expenses,
administrative and other indirect overhead costs, depreciation and amortization expense on non-manufacturing assets
and other miscellaneous operating items. Non-advertising related components of the Company�s total marketing
spending include costs associated with consumer promotions, product sampling and sales aids, all of which are
included in selling and administrative expenses.

Advertising Costs

Advertising and sales promotion costs are expensed as incurred. Costs associated with the Company�s television, print,
radio, internet and in-store campaigns are expensed when the advertising or promotion is published or presented to
consumers. Costs associated with the Company�s racing sponsorships and promotional events are expensed at the time
or during the period of the race or promotional event.

Share Based Compensation

The Company has granted both time based stock option awards and performance based stock option awards that vest
subject to a liquidity event (e.g., an initial public offering or change in control, as defined) and based upon the
attainment of specified minimum returns on capital to Parent shareholders. These grants are subject to the
Stockholders Agreement repurchase right (see Note 13) which provides that in the event an option holder terminates
voluntarily, without good reason and not for cause, the Company has the right to repurchase shares acquired through
the exercise of an option for the lesser of current FMV or the option exercise price. This provision effectively provides
that an option is never vested until the Company decides not to pursue its repurchase right after an exercise and
termination. The Company measures share based compensation associated with the time based awards based on their
fair values on the dates they were granted. Prior to this fiscal year, the expense was recognized by amortizing the fair
value on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. In fiscal year 2014, the Company determined that the repurchase
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language in the Shareholder Agreement created an indefinite vesting condition such that no compensation expense
should be recognized until an actual vesting event occurs. As a result, in the year ended December 31, 2014,
approximately $0.8 million of compensation expense which was previously recognized for these grants was reversed.

Although the Company has estimated the fair value of its performance based stock option awards, given that the
performance condition (a liquidity event) is not probable of occurrence, the Company has not recognized any share
based compensation expense attendant to these awards (See Note 14).
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Employee Benefits

In November 2010, the Company established a defined contribution plan for the U.S. employees of AAG, Inc., which
qualifies as a tax deferred savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (�IRC� or the �Code�). Eligible
U.S. employees may contribute a percentage of their pre-tax compensation, subject to certain IRC limitations. The
plan provides for employer matching contributions of 100% of participant income deferrals to a maximum of $1,000
and employer contributions up to 10% of a participant�s annual base salary, subject to limits prescribed under U.S.
federal regulations.

IDQ Acq. Corp. has a defined contribution (401(k)) plan as amended, available to employees (except for those
covered under a collective bargaining agreement and part-time employees) who have completed three months of
service and have attained 21 years of age. IDQ Acq. Corp�s matching contributions under the plan are 100% of
applicable contributions up to the first 4% of employees� compensation.

Operating Leases

The Company recognizes rental expense for operating leases, including those with rent abatement and escalation
provisions, on a straight-line basis over the applicable lease term.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent legal, other professional and bank underwriting fees incurred in connection with the
issuance of debt. Such fees are amortized over the life of the related debt using the interest method and are included in
interest expense.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the anticipated future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the financial statement
amounts and their respective tax bases. Management reviews the Company�s deferred tax assets to determine whether
their value can be realized based upon available evidence. A valuation allowance is established when management
believes that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be realized. Changes in
valuation allowances from period to period are included in the Company�s tax provision in the period of change. In
addition to valuation allowances, the Company provides for uncertain tax positions when such tax positions do not
meet the recognition thresholds or measurement standards prescribed by accounting guidance on the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes. Amounts for uncertain tax positions are adjusted when new information becomes
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available or when positions are effectively settled.

As of December 30, 2014, the Company has $5.0 million of goodwill, which is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform the prior period data to the current presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on reported net loss or comprehensive loss.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�)
No. 2014-15�Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity�s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The ASU requires
management to evaluate whether there are conditions and events that raise substantial doubt about the entity�s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the financial statements are issued and, if so, to disclose that fact.
The ASU requires management to make this evaluation for both the annual and interim reporting periods, if
applicable. Management is also required to evaluate and disclose whether its plans alleviate that doubt. The ASU is
effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2016.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The ASU
clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue and develops a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards (�IFRS�) that removes inconsistencies and weaknesses in revenue
requirements, provides a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues, improves comparability of revenue
recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions and capital markets, provides more useful information to
users of the financial statements through improved disclosure requirements and simplifies the preparation of financial
statements by reducing the number of requirements to which an entity must refer. For nonpublic entities, ASU
No. 2014-09 is effective for the annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods
within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. A nonpublic entity may elect to apply this guidance earlier
as follows: (1) an annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that
reporting period, (2) an annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017 (3) an annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2017,
including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company is assessing the impact of the adoption of the
ASU on its financial statements, disclosure requirements and methods of adoption.

The FASB decided to propose a one-year deferral of the effective date for its new revenue standard for public and
nonpublic entities reporting under US GAAP. Under the proposal, the standard would be effective for public entities
for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods therein. Nonpublic entities would
be required to adopt the new standard for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim
periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

The proposal also would permit both public and nonpublic entities to adopt the standard as early as the original public
entity effective date (i.e., annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and interim periods therein).
Early adoption prior to that date would not be permitted. The FASB plans to issue an exposure draft on the proposal
and expects to seek public comment with a 30-day comment period. The IASB is expected to discuss its standard�s
effective date later this month. In an effort to simplify the accounting for private companies the FASB has adopted
certain recommendations of the Private Company Council into the Accounting Standards Codification which may be
adopted by private companies. The Company will not adopt these private company accounting standards.
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Note 2�Acquisition of IDQ Acquisition Corp. and Related-Party Transactions

On March 17, 2014, the Company, in conjunction with its wholly owned subsidiaries, AAG Inc., and AAG IDQ
Acquisition Corporation, the Company�s direct wholly-owned subsidiary (�AcquisitionCo�) collectively acquired 100%
of the common stock of IDQ Acquisition Corp., pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 17, 2014
(the �AAG Purchase Agreement�), by and among the Company, AAG Inc., AcquisitionCo,
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IDQ Acq. Corp., the then existing stockholders of IDQ Acq. Corp., and a Contribution Agreement, dated March 17,
2014 (the �Contribution Agreement�), by and among the Company and the then existing stockholders of IDQ Acq.
Corp. (�the March 17 Acquisition�) for an aggregate purchase price of $97.1 million. The acquisition did not result in
the Company or any of its subsidiaries becoming an obligor of IDQ�s debt instruments and IDQ did not become an
obligor of the Company or any of the Company�s other subsidiaries� debt instruments.

The acquisition of IDQ expands the Company�s consumer product portfolio in the automotive aftermarket industry, as
it is a leading manufacturer of do-it-yourself air conditioner recharge and retrofit kits and related products which are
sold in over 25,000 retail stores principally in the United States. In accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinations, the change in control was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting by the Company.
As such, the assets and liabilities of IDQ were recorded at their estimated fair value on March 17, 2014.

Pursuant to the AAG Purchase Agreement, immediately prior to the execution of said Agreement, the existing
stockholders of IDQ Acq. Corp., pursuant to the Contribution Agreement noted above, collectively contributed
186,541 of their common stock in IDQ to the Company in exchange for common and preferred shares in AAG Parent
representing a total estimated fair value of $28.4 million. The remaining 458,177 issued and outstanding shares of
common stock of IDQ were purchased from the existing stockholders for a total $70.0 million. In addition, at the time
of the close, IDQ paid $1.3 million in third party professional fees and expenses that were incurred by AAG Inc. in
connection with the acquisition, which was recorded as a reduction of the total consideration exchanged.

IDQ obtained consents for the change in control from its creditors through amendments to the indentures governing
the IDQ Holdings $220 million Notes and the IDQ Acq. Corp. $45 million Notes, and an amendment to the IDQ
Holdings� Revolving Credit Facility, in consideration of payments of $0.6 million, $0.7 million and $0.1 million,
respectively (See Note 7). In addition, the creditors consented to the payments of acquisition related transaction costs,
such as advisory, legal and other professional fees, of up to $8.0 million, of which $5.6 million was expensed and
included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statements of comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2014.
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During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company finalized its valuation of the acquisition date fair values of the
consideration transferred, and the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Based on that assessment, management
determined that the acquisition resulted in goodwill of $166.6 million, which is attributable to expected synergies and
other benefits that will result from combining certain operations of IDQ and AAG Inc. The following is a summary of
the consideration transferred for the March 17 Acquisition and the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Purchase price:
Cash consideration $ 68,723,844
Fair value of equity instruments ( the sellers received a non-controlling interest in AAG Parent) 28,405,545

Total 97,129,389

Fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Current and other assets 74,435,863
Inventory step-up 6,806,000
Property and equipment 4,664,000
Intangible assets 225,900,000
Current liabilities (39,325,314) 
Long-term liabilities (272,156,216) 
Net deferred tax liability (69,768,811) 

Net value of assets (liabilities) acquired (69,444,478) 

Excess�goodwill $ 166,573,867

The fair value of the current assets acquired includes trade receivables with a fair value of $20.6 million. A step-up in
the value of the inventory of $6.8 million was recorded in connection with the IDQ Acquisition based on valuation
estimates. During 2014, the full $6.8 million of the step-up amount was charged to cost of products sold, as the
inventory was sold, see consolidated statements of comprehensive loss. The fair values allocated to intangible assets
include patents, trademarks and customer relationships with a total estimated fair value of $225.9 million (See Note
7). The relief from royalty method approach was used to value the patents and the trademarks, and the profit
contribution method income approach was used to value the customer relationships. The fair values of the long term
liabilities assumed include the IDQ Holdings $220 million Notes and the IDQ Acq. Corp. $45 million Notes, with
estimated fair values of $224.4 million and $46.8 million, respectively, which is based on par value plus an
approximated yield-to-maturity premium.
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In addition to and in anticipation of the Company�s investment in IDQ, the Company entered into an amendment of
AAG�s Credit Facility on March 11, 2014 revising a defined term, Consolidated EBITDA. Consolidated EBITDA is
used in the calculation of certain financial condition covenants under the Credit Facility. The revision to the definition
of Consolidated EBITDA excludes from AAG Inc.�s Consolidated EBITDA fees and expenses incurred for the
Company�s investment in IDQ, it�s implementation of a management services agreement with IDQ and its pursuit of
cost savings, expense reductions and other operating improvements and synergies related to the IDQ acquisition.

In the second quarter of 2014, the Company made an acquisition in the United Kingdom for a total consideration of
approximately $1.9 million.
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In conjunction with the original Acquisition, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement (�TSA�) with
Clorox whereby Clorox would provide certain services, equipment and office space to the Company. Additionally
under the TSA, the Company provided certain services to Clorox. Related party transactions and activities involving
Clorox are not always consummated on terms equivalent to those that would prevail in an arm�s-length transaction
where conditions of competitive, free-market dealings may exist. On November 1, 2011, the Company completed the
transition of its North American and export operations from Clorox provisioning to standalone operations. The
Company completed the transition of certain international operations from Clorox in the second quarter of 2012 and
terminated the remaining service components of the TSA. During 2012, the Company recorded $0.7 million of
payments under the agreement in Selling and administrative expenses. Further, on conclusion of the TSA we entered
into a subsequent arrangement with Clorox for continuation of services in Australia and New Zealand, including
warehousing, logistics, customer service and information systems facilities and support. Expenses for these services
were $1.3 million and $0.7 million and were included in cost of goods sold and selling, general and administrative
expenses, respectively in 2012.

Avista

Avista owns approximately 91.3% of the Company. As a result, Avista has the power to elect our board of directors
and has the ability to exercise significant influence or control over the Company�s operations.

The Company has entered into a monitoring agreement with Avista and affiliates of Avista whereby Avista provides
services for a fixed fee of $1.0 million annually to the Company. Selling, general and administrative expenses,
including out of pocket expenses related to this monitoring agreement were (in thousands):

Year
ended

December 31,
2014

Year
ended

December 31,
2013

Year
ended

December 31,
2012

Avista monitoring agreement fees $ 1,652 $ 1,044 $ 1,055
In connection with the Acquisition and the issuance of its long-term debt, the Company paid $4.1 million to Avista
and affiliates of Avista for consulting expenses and recorded these as deferred financing costs which are amortized
over the term of the debt using the effective interest method. Related amortization expense was (in thousands):

Year
ended

December 31,
2014

Year
ended

December 31,
2013

Year
ended

December 31,
2012
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Amortization of Avista consulting
expenses $ 600 $ 604 $ 605

Consulting Agreements

Michael Klein, who serves as the Company�s Chief Executive Officer, is the sole member of Las Colinas Investments,
LLC, which is entitled to receive $125,280 per annum from IDQ Operating, Inc., a subsidiary of IDQ Acq. Corp.,
pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, the Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2013, as
amended, subject to an aggregate cap of $360,000 following April 1, 2014. Gerard Rooney, who serves as the
Company�s Executive Vice President of Operations, is the sole member of Windy Hill Investments LLC, which is
entitled to receive $83,250 per annum from IDQ Operating, Inc. pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions
of, the Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2013, as amended, subject to an aggregate cap of $240,000
following April 1, 2014. Under the terms of the Board Service and
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Consulting Agreements, dated as of June 1, 2014 and March 17, 2014, respectively, Ms. Kranc and Mr. Yurko are
each entitled to receive $50,000 per annum from the Company for their board service and consulting services. In
consideration for services rendered in connection with the IDQ investment, Mr. Yurko received a transaction fee equal
to $250,000 per the terms of the consulting agreement. In June 2014, Ms. Kranc was granted 100,000 stock options,
per the terms of her consulting agreement.

Kinderhook Industries

Under the terms of the IDQ Acquisition, Kinderhook Industries, which formerly owned 88% of IDQ Acq. Corp.,
received a 7.1% stake in the common equity of the Company, as a component of the consideration for the sale of its
ownership interest in IDQ Acq. Corp. Kinderhook had a monitoring agreement whereby Kinderhook provides services
for a fixed fee of $1.7 million annually to IDQ Acq. Corp. The agreement was amended in March 2014 to cap future
payments to Kinderhook at a total of $5.0 million. Selling, general and administrative expenses, including out of
pocket expenses related to this monitoring agreement were $1.2 million during 2014.

Directors and Officers

In connection with the Acquisition and issuance of the AAG�s long-term debt, the Company incurred costs of $1.8
million for consulting expenses from individuals that later became directors and officers of the Company. Of this
amount, $0.4 million was paid to certain directors and officers of the Company and $1.4 million was reinvested in the
Company through the purchase of common stock. Of these consulting expenses, $1.3 million was recorded in 2010
with the remaining $0.5 million deferred and amortized over the term of the respective debt using the effective interest
method. Related amortization expense was (in thousands):

Year
ended

December 31,
2014

Year
ended

December 31,
2013

Year
ended

December 31,
2012

Amortization of directors� and officers� consulting
expenses $ 68 $ 68 $ 68
The Company engaged Charles McIlvaine, a former Director of the Company, to provide services associated with
corporate development and other strategic initiatives on a consulting basis. Pursuant to this arrangement the Company
recorded charges of $0.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2012, in selling, general and administrative
expenses.

Note 3�Accounts Receivable, net

The percentage of accounts receivable due from the Company�s largest customers were:

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Table of Contents 49



December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

First 21% 24% 
Second 19% 7% 

No other customers exceeded 10% of net accounts receivable in any period.
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The percentage of the Company�s net sales to the Company�s largest customers were:

Year
ended

December 31,
2014

Year
ended

December 31,
2013

Year
ended

December 31,
2012

Walmart 23% 23% 22% 
AutoZone 12% �  �  

Sales to the Company�s largest customer are principally made in North America. No other customers exceeded 10% of
net sales in any period.

The Company�s allowance for doubtful accounts is summarized as follows (in thousands):

Beginning
Balance

Provision
for

Doubtful
Accounts

Amounts
Written-
Off

Other
Deductions�
Purchase
Accounting

Ending
Balance

Year ended December 31, 2014 $ 448 $ 360 $ (241) $ �  $ 567
Year ended December 31, 2013 682 174 (408) �  448
Year ended December 31, 2012 390 370 (78) �  682
Note 4�Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Finished goods $ 43,600 $ 28,400
Work in process 1,750 �  
Raw materials and packaging 20,271 7,896
Allowances for obsolescence (2,316) (2,253) 

$ 63,305 $ 34,043

The Company�s allowance for obsolescence is summarized as follows (in thousands):
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Year Ended December 31,
Beginning
Balance

Provision
for

obsolescence

Amounts
Written-
Off

Other
Deductions�
Purchase
Accounting

Ending
Balance

2014 $ 2,253 $ 3,818 $ (3,755) $ �  $ 2,316
2013 2,029 3,599 (3,375) �  2,253
2012 2,051 1,195 (1,217) �  2,029
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Note 5�Other Current Assets

Other current assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Current deferred taxes $ 5,451 $ 3,555
Deferred financing costs 1,508 1,767
Prepaid expenses 3,230 2,015
Prepaid income taxes 1,480 2,453
Other 1,790 1,886

$ 13,459 $ 11,676

Note 6�Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Land and improvements $ 696 $ 696
Buildings 3,773 3,769
Leasehold improvements 1,381 1,088
Machinery and equipment 28,833 22,331
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4,622 4,434
Vehicles 457 413
Molds and dies 272 �  
Capitalized software 12,697 12,182
Construction in progress 3,531 1,541

56,262 46,454
Less: accumulated depreciation (25,254) (17,518) 

$ 31,008 $ 28,936
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Depreciation expense related to property, plant and equipment and amortization of capitalized software was (in
thousands):

Year ended
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
December 31,

2012
Depreciation $ 5,655 $ 4,953 $ 4,639
Amortization of capitalized software 2,198 2,017 1,605

$ 7,853 $ 6,970 $ 6,244

Note 7�Goodwill and Intangible Assets, net

During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company completed its annual indefinite lived intangible asset impairment
assessment. The Company uses an income approach, the relief from royalty method, to estimate the fair value of its
trademarks and trade names with indefinite lives. This method assumes that, in lieu of ownership,
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a third party would be willing to pay a royalty in order to obtain the rights to use the comparable asset. The
determination of the fair values of trademarks and brand name assets with indefinite lives requires significant
judgments in determining both the assets� estimated cash flows as well as the appropriate discount and royalty rates
applied to those cash flows to determine fair value. The fair values of the trademarks and brand names were
determined using unobservable inputs, reflecting the Company�s own assumptions (Level 3). Changes in such
estimates or the application of alternative assumptions could produce different results. After completing the trademark
impairment test as described in Note 1, the Company recorded a $7.0 million non-cash trademark impairment charge
related to its STP trade name, which is included in intangible asset and goodwill impairment in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive loss. The key factors leading to the impairment charge was a decline in forecasted future
results of the brand, as compared with the projections which were made when the brand was acquired from Clorox in
2010.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company revised its pricing structure for intercompany purchases and sales of
goods (�Intercompany Pricing�). The change in Intercompany Pricing had the effect of increasing the cost of
intercompany purchases in the Company�s Europe, Middle East and Africa reporting unit, its Australia and New
Zealand reporting unit and its Latin America and Asia reporting unit, while increasing the value of intercompany sales
from the Company�s North America reporting unit. As a result of this change in Intercompany Pricing, when the
Company determined the fair value of the assets and liabilities of its reporting units in the first step of the goodwill
impairment test as described in Note 1 the fair value of the Company�s Europe, Middle East and Africa reporting unit
and its Australia and New Zealand reporting unit were lower than the carrying values of those reporting units. This
decrease in value resulted primarily from the change in the Intercompany Pricing structure. After completing the
second step of the goodwill impairment test as described in Note 1, the Company recorded a $24.1 million non-cash
goodwill impairment charge, which is included in intangible asset and goodwill impairment in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive loss. The fair values of the trademarks and brand names were determined using
unobservable inputs, reflecting the Company�s own assumptions (Level 3).

The Company also evaluated the recoverability of its customer relationships, patents and licensing arrangements
intangible assets as well as its tangible, long lived assets. When there is prevalent indication of impairment of a finite
and long-lived asset or asset group, the Company tests for recoverability by comparing the carrying value of an asset
or asset group to their undiscounted cash flows. However, the Company concluded there was not a prevalence of
evidence any impairment was present at the asset group level for any of its finite lived assets.
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Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets were as follows (in thousands):

Trademarks and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Patents
Subject
to

Amortization

Trademarks
and

Brands
Not Subject to
Amortization

Customer
Relationships
Subject to

Amortization

Licensing
Arrangements
Subject to

Amortization Total
Balance at December 31,
2012 $ 362,216 �  $ 99,597 $ 249,610 $ 3,698 $ 352,905
Amortization �  �  �  (35,488) (1,300) (36,788) 
Acquisition 580 �  �  1,823 �  1,823
Translation adjustments (3,970) �  (1,384) (3,086) �  (4,470) 

Balance at December 31,
2013 358,826 �  98,213 212,859 2,398 313,470

Amortization 0 (2,366) 0 (43,439) (1,300) (47,105) 
Impairment 0 0 (7,000) 0 0 (7,000) 
Acquisitions 168,445 26,900 31,400 167,600 0 225,900
Translation adjustments (3,908) �  (1,161) (2,415) 0 (3,576) 

Balance at December 31,
2014 $ 523,363 $ 24,534 $ 121,452 $ 334,605 $ 1,098 $ 481,689

Customer relationships and licensing arrangements subject to amortization are reported on the consolidated balance
sheets net of accumulated amortization of $149.1 million, and $80.6 million, at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The weighted average remaining amortization period for patents, customer relationships and licensing
arrangements subject to amortization is 8 years, 6 years and 2 years, respectively. In the first quarter of 2014, the
Company acquired IDQ Holdings in the United States, increasing goodwill by $166.6 million (all of which was
allocated to the IDQ reporting unit) and made an acquisition in the U. K., increasing goodwill by $1.9 million (all of
which was allocated to its European reporting unit under AAG Inc.) In the third quarter of 2013, the Company made
an acquisition in Europe, increasing goodwill and customer relationships by $0.6 million and $1.8 million (which will
be amortized over 7 years), respectively. Licensing royalties were $2.4 million, $2.3 million and $3.0 million in the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Although licensing agreements may not be renewed for
strategic or other reasons, the Company generally maintains and extends its existing license arrangements.

Expected future amortization expense for these intangible assets as of December 31, 2014 is as follows:
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Fiscal Years
2015 $ 51,322
2016 49,126
2017 47,637
2018 39,554
2019 39,554
Thereafter 133,044

$ 360,237
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Note 8�Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

The following summarizes the Company�s accrued expenses and other current liabilities (in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Trade, sales promotion and advertising $ 10,254 $ 8,777
Accrued interest 15,864 8,029
Accrued taxes 2,729 50
Compensation and benefits 6,627 2,156
Other 10,549 5,672

$ 46,023 $ 24,684

Note 9�Debt

The following summarizes the Company�s debt (in thousands):

December 31, 2014 Long-term
portion, net of
discount/
premiumFace Value Premium Discount Carry Value

Less: current
portion

Revolvers(1) $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  
AAG Term Loan�due 2016 279,000 �  (3,389) 275,611 (3,000) $ 272,611
AAG Senior Notes�9.75%, due
2018 275,000 �  (6,142) 268,858 �  268,858
IDQ Holdings�Senior Secured
Notes�11.5%, due 2017 220,000 3,390 �  223,390 �  223,390
IDQ Acq. Corp.�Senior Secured
Notes�14.0%, due 2017 45,000 1,464 �  46,464 �  46,464

$ 819,000 $ 4,854 $ (9,531) $ 814,323 $ (3,000) $ 811,323
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(1) �AAG Revolver and IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facilities.

December 31, 2013

Balance Discount Carry Value
Less: current

portion

Long-term
Portion, net of

discount
AAG Revolver $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  
AAG Term Loan�due 2016 291,000 (6,271) 284,729 (3,000) $ 281,729
AAG Senior Notes�9.75%, due 2018 275,000 (6,147) 268,853 �  268,853

$ 566,000 $ (12,418) $ 553,582 $ (3,000) $ 550,582
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AAG Credit Facility

In connection with the Acquisition on November 5, 2010, the Company entered into a credit agreement, among
Intermediate, the Company, several lenders, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other
agents parties thereto (the �AAG Credit Facility�). Borrowings under the AAG Credit Facility bear interest at a rate of
the sum of (i) the greater of the London Interbank Offered Rate (�LIBOR�) or 1.75% and (ii) 4.25%. The AAG Credit
Facility provided revolving credit and a Term Loan as follows:

AAG Revolver�A secured $50.0 million revolving credit loan (the �AAG Revolver�) governed by the AAG Revolving
Credit facility, which expires in November 2015. Further to interest as described above on the AAG Revolver, an
annual commitment fee of 0.75% is charged quarterly based on the average daily unused portion of the AAG
Revolver. No amounts were outstanding against the AAG Revolver at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
While the Company expects to be able to renew the AAG Revolving Credit Facility, there is no guarantee the
Company will be successful, which may limit the Company�s ability to achieve its corporate operating plans.

On March 11, 2014, the Company entered into an amendment of AAG�s Credit Facility revising a defined term,
Consolidated EBITDA. Consolidated EBITDA is used in the calculation of certain financial condition covenants
under the AAG Credit Facility. The revision to the definition of Consolidated EBITDA excludes from Consolidated
EBITDA fees and expenses incurred for the Company�s acquisition of IDQ Acq. Corp., the Company�s implementation
of a management services agreement with IDQ Acq. Corp. and the Company�s pursuit of cost savings, expense
reductions and other operating improvements and synergies related to IDQ.

AAG Term Loan�A $300.0 million term loan (the �AAG Term Loan�) with quarterly principal payments of $0.8 million
and the remaining principal maturing in November 2016.

In September 2012, the Company entered into an amendment of the AAG Credit Facility revising the maximum
consolidated leverage ratio and the minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio as applicable to the Company�s
$50.0 million Revolver. Costs associated with the amendment of $0.4 million have been deferred and are recorded as
other current assets and other non-current assets on the Company�s consolidated balance sheets, and will be amortized
to interest expense together with other of the Company�s deferred financing costs using the effective interest method.

The AAG Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of AAG. The AAG Credit Facility is
subject to certain covenants which restrict the payment of dividends, AAG�s ability to incur indebtedness or liens, or
make certain investments and requires AAG to maintain certain financial ratios. As of December 31, 2014, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants related to the AAG Credit Facility. The Company�s payment
obligations under the AAG Credit Facility are guaranteed, jointly and severally, by all of AAG�s wholly owned
domestic subsidiaries.

AAG Senior Notes

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Table of Contents 60



In connection with the Acquisition on November 5, 2010, AAG issued 9.25% senior unsecured notes (the �AAG
Senior Notes�) in an aggregate principal amount of $275.0 million, which will mature in November 2018. The coupon
interest on these notes is payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1.

Under terms of a registration rights agreement the Company entered into with respect to the AAG Senior Notes, the
Company agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to complete an exchange offer related to the notes by
April 28, 2012. Until the exchange offer was completed on August 23, 2012, additional interest of $0.3 million
accrued on the AAG Senior Notes that was paid November 2012.

F-133

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Table of Contents 61



Table of Contents

Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

The indenture that governs the AAG Senior Notes is subject to certain covenants which restrict the payment of
dividends, AAG�s ability to incur indebtedness or liens, or make certain investments. AAG�s payment obligations under
the AAG Senior Notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally, by all of the AAG�s wholly owned domestic subsidiaries.

IDQ Holdings $220 Million Senior Secured Notes

On March 17, 2014, the Company assumed the debt of IDQ Holdings, as part of the March 17 Acquisition (See Note
2). In connection with the March 2014 Sale, the $220 Million Senior Secured Notes (the �$220M Notes�) were recorded
at their estimated fair value of $224.4 million, which included a premium of $4.4 million. The premium is being
amortized into interest expense using the effective interest rate method over the remaining term of the $220M Notes.
At December 31, 2014 the carrying value of the $220M Notes was $223.4 million, which includes unamortized
premiums of $3.4 million. Interest is payable on the $220M Notes in cash semi-annually, in arrears, on April 1 and
October 1 of each year.

Previously, on March 27, 2012, IDQ Holdings completed the sale of $220 million aggregate principal amount of
11.5% senior secured notes due April 2017. The $220M Notes were issued under an indenture among IDQ Holdings,
its� subsidiary guarantors named therein, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. The
$220M Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a senior secured basis by each of
IDQ�s existing and future domestic restricted subsidiaries. The $220M Notes and the related guarantees are secured by
liens on substantially all of IDQ�s and the guarantor�s assets, subject to certain exceptions and permitted liens. The
security interest in such assets consisting of working capital assets that secure the notes and the related guarantees are
contractually subordinated to liens thereon that secure the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility. The security
interest in the non-working capital assets are contractually subordinated to liens thereon that secure the notes and the
related guarantees.

The indenture governing the $220M Notes contains certain restrictive covenants that, among other requirements,
limits IDQ�s and it�s restricted subsidiaries� ability to incur additional debt, pay dividends or make other restricted
payments, prepay, redeem or repurchase capital stock or subordinated debt, transfer or sell assets, make investments,
enter into transactions with IDQ�s affiliates, create or incur liens and merge or consolidate with any person. These
covenants are subject to a number of exceptions and qualifications, as defined in the indenture, and for so long as the
$220M Notes have an investment grade rating from both Standard & Poor�s and Moody�s Investor Service, Inc., and no
default has occurred and is continuing under the indenture governing the $220M Notes, generally, the Company will
not be subject to certain of the covenants listed above. As of December 31, 2014, IDQ Holdings was in compliance
with all such covenants.

Subject to certain conditions, in general, IDQ must make an offer to purchase the $220M Notes with the excess cash
flow offer amount, defined in the indenture as 75% of IDQ�s excess cash flow, determined for each annual period
ending December 31, at 103% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of
repurchase. The Company will not be required (but may elect to do so) to make an excess cash offer unless the excess
cash amount with respect to the period exceeds $3.0 million (lesser amounts are to be carried forward for determining
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whether the $3.0 million threshold has been met for any future period). Should the Company conclude or be required
to make such offer, then the offer shall be mailed to the $220M Notes� holders within 120 days after the applicable
annual period ending December 31. With respect to the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company has estimated
the excess cash flow offer amount to be approximately $14.6 million.
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After October 1, 2014, the Company has the option to redeem a portion or all of the notes at a premium, set forth, in
the indenture, which will decrease over time, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption.

Should the Company experience a change in control, as defined in the indenture, the holders of the $220M Notes have
the right to require the Company to purchase the notes at a price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount
thereof, together with accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase. In connection with the change in
control that occurred on March 17, 2014, the indenture governing the $220M Notes was amended effective March 17,
2014, so that the acquisitions did not constitute a �Change in Control�, as defined in the indenture and, therefore, IDQ
was not required to make any �Change in Control Offers� to the $220M Note holders. The provisions of these
Supplemental Indentures required consideration of $0.6 million for the amendment.

At December 31, 2014, accrued interest on the notes was $6.3 million.

IDQ Holdings $35 Million Revolving Credit Facility

On March 27, 2012, concurrent with the sale of the $220M Notes and repayment of the revolving bank debt, IDQ
entered into a new $35 million asset based revolving credit facility with the same lender (the �IDQ Holdings Revolving
Credit Facility�) which is effective through March 27, 2017. Under the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility, the
interest rate, at the option of the Company, is prime rate plus 1.50% or LIBOR plus 2.50%. The Company may borrow
based on a borrowing base formula that includes 85% and 60% of eligible receivables and inventory, respectively.

IDQ�s obligations under the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility are secured, subject to certain exceptions, by a
first priority lien on IDQ�s working capital assets and by a second priority lien on IDQ Holdings� non-working capital
assets. In addition under the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility, IDQ must adhere to an annual capital
expenditure limit covenant of $1.75 million, for the year ended December 31, 2014. Amounts not used may be carried
over for one year only to the next fiscal year. A third amendment to the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility
allows for restructuring capital expenditures associated with the March 2014 Sale, not to exceed $4.0 million during
the term of this agreement. As of December 31, 2014, IDQ Holdings was in compliance with this covenant.

On August 20, 2012, in connection with the sale of $45 million aggregate principal amount of senior secured notes
due October 1, 2017 by IDQ Acq. Corp. (the �$45M Notes�), as described further below, the IDQ Holdings Revolving
Credit Facility was amended to permit IDQ Holdings to declare and make a dividend to IDQ Acq. Corp., subject to
certain requirements defined in the amended agreement, in order to allow IDQ Acq. Corp. to pay the fees and
expenses associated with the sale of the $45M Notes. Additionally, the amendment permits IDQ Holdings to declare
and make a dividend to IDQ Acq. Corp., subject to certain limitations, for the regularly scheduled cash payment of
interest, at the rate of 14.00%, per annum, on the $45M Notes. On March 17, 2014, there was a third amendment to
the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility for the consent to the changes in ownership that occurred on that date
(See Note 2) and to allow for the payment of fees and expenses in connection with the change in control. The second
amendment on December 27, 2012, permits the IDQ Holdings to make payments to Kinderhook pursuant to the
management agreement in effect on December 27, 2012 (See Note 11). Consent fees of $87,500 and $350,000, were
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the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility was $13.6 million and there was no outstanding balance at December 31,
2014.
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IDQ Acq. Corp. $45 Million Senior Secured Notes

In connection with the March 17, 2014 sale transaction (See Note 2), the Company and subsidiaries assumed the IDQ
$45M Notes (the �$45M Notes�) at their estimated fair value of $46.8 million, which included a premium of $1.8
million. The premium is being amortized into interest expense using the effective interest rate method over the
remaining term of the notes. The terms of the $45M Notes require the Company to pay interest due entirely in cash
(14.00%) to the extent that there is sufficient cash in an interest reserve account established by the Company or, if
there is not sufficient cash in the interest reserve account, partially with cash from the interest reserve account, if any,
and the balance by the issuance of additional PIK Notes at (14.75%) which would increase the principal amount of the
outstanding notes. Interest is payable semi-annually, in arrears, on April 1 and October 1 of each year. As of
December 31, 2014, the carrying balance of the $45M Notes was $46.5 million, which includes the unamortized
premium of $1.5 million.

On August 20, 2012, IDQ Acq. Corp. completed the sale of $45 million aggregate principal amount of senior secured
notes due October 1, 2017. The $45M Notes were issued at 100% of the aggregate principal amount. The notes were
issued under an indenture among IDQ and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee and
collateral agent. The notes are not guaranteed by any of IDQ�s subsidiaries and are structurally subordinated to all of
the liabilities and preferred stock of any of IDQ�s subsidiaries, including the $220M Notes and the IDQ Holdings
Revolving Credit Facility. The $45M Notes are secured by liens on substantially all of IDQ Acq. Corp.�s assets subject
to certain exception and permitted liens, including a first priority pledge on 100% of the capital stock of IDQ
Holdings.

The indenture governing the $45M Notes contains certain restrictive covenants that, among other requirements, limits
IDQ and restricted subsidiaries�, including IDQ Holdings�, ability to incur additional debt, pay dividends or make other
restricted payments, prepay, redeem or repurchase capital stock or subordinated debt, transfer or sell assets, make
investments, enter into transactions with affiliates, create or incur liens and merge or consolidate with any person. In
addition, IDQ Acq. Corp. may not engage in any business or activity other than its ownership of all of the equity
interest in IDQ Holdings, performing its obligations with respect to indebtedness or liens permitted to be incurred
under the indenture, and activities incidental to the foregoing.

After October 1, 2014, the Company has the option to redeem a portion or all of the $45M Notes at a premium, set
forth in the indenture, which will decrease over time, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of
redemption.

Should IDQ Acq. Corp. experience a change in control, as defined in the indenture, the holders of the $45M Notes
have the right to require IDQ Acq. Corp. to purchase their notes at a price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate
principal amount thereof, together with accrued and unpaid interest (at the cash interest rate) thereon. In the event that
the terms of the indebtedness of IDQ Acq. Corp.�s subsidiaries prohibits such a repurchase, then within a specified
time described fully in the $45M Notes indenture, IDQ Acq. Corp. shall repay in full all such indebtedness, or offer to
repay in full such indebtedness, if doing so will allow the purchase of the notes or obtain the requisite consent under
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the agreements governing such indebtedness to permit the repurchase of the notes. In connection with the change in
control that occurred on March 17, 2014 (See Note 2), the indenture governing the $45M Notes was amended
effective March 17, 2014 so that the acquisitions did not constitute a �Change in Control�, as defined in the indenture
and, therefore, IDQ Acq. Corp. was not required to make any �Change in Control Offers� to the note holders. The
provisions of these Supplemental Indentures required consideration of $0.7 million for the amendment.

As mentioned above, effective August 20, 2012, an amendment to the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility
permits IDQ Holdings to declare and make dividends to IDQ Acq. Corp, subject to certain requirements
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defined in the amendment agreement, in order to allow IDQ Acq. Corp. to make the regularly scheduled cash
payments of interest, at the rate of 14.00% per annum, on the $45M Notes. On the business day preceding October 1
of each year, IDQ Acq. Corp. will cause IDQ Holdings to make the maximum amount of permitted dividends to it,
pursuant to the indenture governing the $220M Notes, so long as such dividend is otherwise permitted to be made
under the indenture governing the $220M Notes, the IDQ Holdings Revolving Credit Facility, and in accordance with
applicable law, and that IDQ. Acq. Corp. shall deposit such amounts in the interest reserve account maintained with
the collateral agent. In lieu of causing IDQ Holdings to make such a dividend, IDQ Acq. Corp. may deposit an
equivalent amount from the sale of its capital stock or by a contribution of capital. Amounts on deposit in the interest
reserve account shall be released to the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the security agreement to pay interest
due on the $45M Notes. No indebtedness may be secured by a lien on the interest reserve account other than the $45M
Notes.

On September 30, 2014, IDQ Acq. Corp. reserved the cash interest of $3.1 million due April 1, 2015 on the $45M
Notes. These funds, as required, were deposited in the interest reserve account maintained with the collateral agent,
and at December 31, 2014 are included in restricted cash (See Note 1) within current assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. On April 1, 2015, IDQ Acq. Corp. authorized the release of those funds to the trustee of
the $45M Notes. For the period March 17, 2014 through December 31, 2014, interest expense related to the $45M
Notes amounted to $4.7 million, which is net of amortization of note premium of $0.3 million.

Interest Expense

Interest expense associated with the credit facilities and the Company�s long-term debt including commitment fees for
unused borrowings, and amortization of original issue discount and deferred financing costs were as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
December 31,

2012
Credit Facility
AAG Revolver $ 813 $ 864 $ 1,485
AAG Term Loan�due 2016 19,392 19,954 20,110
AAG Senior Notes�9.75%, due 2018 27,210 27,089 26,980
IDQ Holdings Senior Secured Notes- 11.5%, due 2017 18,985 �  �  
IDQ Acq. Corp. Senior Secured Notes- 14.0%, due 2017 4,651 �  �  
Other 482 117 312

$ 71,533 $ 48,024 $ 48,887
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Debt Maturities

Debt maturities are as follows as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Fiscal Years
2015 $ 3,000
2016 276,000
2017 265,000
2018 275,000

$ 819,000

Deferred Financing Costs, net

Costs associated with the establishment of the AAG Credit Facility and AAG Senior Notes have been deferred and are
recorded as other current assets and other non-current assets on the Company�s Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows
(in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Balance $ 9,979 $ 9,979
Less: accumulated amortization (6,397) (4,814) 

3,582 5,165
Less: current portion, net of amortization (1,508) (1,767) 

Long-term portion, net of amortization $ 2,074 $ 3,398

Note 10�Fair Value Measurement of Assets and Liabilities

The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company established a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value which is intended to increase
consistency and comparability and related disclosures. An asset or liability�s classification is based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement and is disclosed in one of the following three categories:
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Level 1�Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2�Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3�Unobservable inputs reflecting the reporting entity�s own assumptions.
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The Company�s financial instruments consist of cash, trade accounts receivable, trade accounts payable and long-term
debt. Due to their short-term maturity, the carrying amounts of cash, trade accounts receivable and trade accounts
payable approximate their fair market values. The carrying and fair values of the Company�s long-term debt were as
follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

AAG Term Loan $ 275,611 $ 278,303 $ 284,729 $ 291,000
AAG Senior Notes�9.75%, due 2018 $ 268,858 $ 273,625 $ 268,853 $ 267,438
IDQ Holdings�Senior Secured Notes�11.5%, due 2017 $ 223,400 $ 224,400 $ �  $ �  
IDQ Acq. Corp.�Senior Secured Notes�14.0%, due 2017 $ 46,500 $ 46,800 $ �  $ �  
The fair value of the Term Loan and Senior Notes was determined using broker quotes (Level 2). The broker quotes
are determined on an analysis of discounted cash flows together with applicable forward LIBOR rates.

Note 11�Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases various manufacturing, warehousing and office facilities under non-cancelable operating lease
agreements which expire at various dates through 2019. The Company also has a number of third party service
providers covering aspects of the administration of the business, including procurement, contract manufacturing,
logistics, transportation, warehousing, software maintenance, systems support and hosting. In its marketing and brand
support, the Company employs sponsorships, television, print, digital and online advertising. In sourcing of these
services the Company generally enters into enforceable and legally binding agreements specifying all significant
terms, including quantity, price and the approximate timing of the provision of the good or service to the Company.
Under its existing non-cancelable contracts, as of December 31, 2014 the Company is required to pay minimum
annual payments as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
Operating
Leases

Procurement,
Contract

Manufacturing,
Warehousing

and
Logistics
Obligations

Software
Maintenance,
Systems
Support
and

Hosting

Sponsorship
and
Media

Agreements

Advisory
Services and
Monitoring

2015 $ 4,004 $ 5,643 $ 803 $ 2,515 $ 2,740
2016 $ 3,906 $ 3,939 $ 313 $ 845 $ 2,572
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2017 $ 3,197 $ 3,518 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,000
2018 $ 2,369 $ 1,540 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,000
2019 $ 1,377 $ 1,540 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,000
Thereafter(1) $ 271 $ 124 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

$ 15,124 $ 16,304 $ 1,116 $ 3,360 $ 8,312

(1) �Excludes the Company�s withdrawal liability to the pension of former employees of IDQ Operating,
relating to a complete withdrawal within the meaning of Section 4203 of ERISA. The Company is
obligated to fund the pension fund $50,000 per year, until the obligations are satisfied. (See Note 16 in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

F-139

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Table of Contents 73



Table of Contents

Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

Operating lease arrangements�Certain of the Company�s operating lease agreements contain rent abatement and rent
escalation clauses. The Company expenses rent on a straight-line basis over the life its leases, which commences on
the date the Company has the right to control leased property. Certain of the Company�s facility operating lease
agreements also provide for additional conditional payments in connection with the lease of the property (e.g., share
of operating expenses, insurance, and real estate taxes). These additional payments are not included in the summary of
above.

Rental expense for all operating leases was (in thousands):

Year ended
December 31,

2014

December 31,

2013

December 31,

2012
$4,731 $2,775 $4,108

Contract manufacturing, warehousing and logistics obligations�The Company secures its warehousing facilities and
attendant services, and logistics and transportation expertise under several contracts extending into 2019. These
outsourcing arrangements typically provide for a base fee and variable costs determined with reference to volume or
the provision of additional services, and terms providing for termination for convenience on 120 days� notice and the
payment of stipulated fees and additional costs. Only fixed or base fees on an ongoing basis for the term of the
contracted services are included in the above summary. Further, the Company has ongoing relationships with various
suppliers who procure, manufacture and/or package the Company�s products (�Contract Manufacturers�). Certain of the
Company�s Contract Manufacturers maintain title and control of raw materials and components, materials utilized in
finished products, and of the finished products themselves until shipment to the Company�s customers or third party
distribution centers in accordance with agreed upon shipment terms. The Company purchases and maintains title and
control of raw materials and components packaged by other of its Contract Manufacturers and is only obligated
further for the services themselves. The Company typically does not have definitive minimum purchase obligations
included in the contract terms with its Contract Manufacturers or other raw material or component suppliers. In the
ordinary course of business, supply and service needs are communicated by the Company to its Contract
Manufacturers based on orders and short-term projections, ranging typically three months. The Company is
committed to purchase the products produced by the Contract Manufacturers based on the projections provided.

Software maintenance, systems support and hosting�The Company outsources much of its information technology
infrastructure. These arrangements typically provide for a base or fixed fee and additional costs associated with added
systems users and supplementary services, and terms providing for early contract termination with notice and the
payment of stipulated fees. Only fixed or base fees on an ongoing basis for the term of the contracted services are
included in the above summary.
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Supply and purchase agreements�IDQ Acq. Corp. completed a raw material supply agreement that was in effect
March 1, 2014 through July 31, 2014. Purchases from this supplier for the period March 17, 2014 through July 31,
2014 were approximately $1.1 million. Additionally, IDQ Acq. Corp. had another supply agreement that was in effect
from November 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014, during which period IDQ Acq. Corp. was expected to make
purchases totaling approximately $1.8 million. For the period ended December 31, 2014, IDQ Holdings purchases
from this supplier totaled approximately $2.1 million. The Company anticipates renewing these agreements in 2015.

Sponsorship and media agreements�The Company�s marketing campaigns rely heavily on racing and rally
sponsorships, promotional events, television, print and online advertising. Sponsorship commitments extend into 2015
and the Company�s media plan extends through 2016.

F-140

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Table of Contents 75



Table of Contents

Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

Advisory Services and Monitoring Agreement�Under the Company�s Advisory Services and Monitoring Agreement,
Avista and Kinderhook are providing the Company ongoing advisory services with respect to strategic business plans,
corporate development and financial monitoring (See Note 2).

Note 12�Litigation and Other Legal Matters

The Company is subject to various lawsuits and claims relating to issues such as contract disputes, product liability,
patents and trademarks, advertising, employee and other matters. Although the results of claims and litigation cannot
be predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of management that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have
a material adverse effect, individually or in the aggregate, on the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

In connection with the Acquisition, Clorox retained liability associated with a potential contract claim and the
Company has agreed to indemnify and reimburse Clorox for 50% of the first $5.0 million in costs related to the
contract claim. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company has accrued a $2.5 million long-term liability
related to this contingency, which is included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Note 13�Shareholders� Equity

Preferred Stock

In March 2014, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to authorize 200 million shares of preferred stock,
of which 150,000 shares are designated as Series A Preferred stock and the remainder is undesignated. The Company�s
parent, Avista, contributed $62.0 million to the Company in exchange for 62,000 shares of the Preferred A stock.
Upon completion of the March 17, 2014 Sales Transaction, Kinderhook and former shareholders of IDQ received
4,746 shares and 647 shares, respectively, of the Company�s Series A Preferred stock. Since these shares are not traded
on the public market, the Company commissioned a valuation by an unrelated third-party valuation firm, in
accordance with the guidance provided by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practice Guide,
Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation, and assigned a fair value to the
Series A Preferred stock issued to Kinderhook and former management IDQ shareholders of $1,094.90 and $766.43
per share (discounted for lack of marketability), respectively.

At December 31, 2014, Avista owned 91.4% of the Company�s issued and outstanding Series A Preferred stock, with
an additional 7.1% owned by Kinderhook and the remaining aggregate 1.5% owned by certain members of
management and the Board of Directors (�Management Stockholders�).

The Company�s preferred stock has certain rights, powers and privileges which include, but are not limited to the
following:

(a) the preferred stock will rank senior to any capital stock or other equity securities of the Company (including,
without limitation, the common stock of the Company) with respect to dividend rights, rights on liquidation,
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dissolution, redemption or winding up;

(b) the preferred stock is subject to a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share (subject to customary adjustments
such as stock splits) plus all unpaid and accrued dividends described in (c) below which will be required if a
liquidation event occurs (including certain mergers or sales of the Company or the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive
license or other disposition of substantially all of the assets of the Company);
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(c) the preferred stock shall be entitled to receive, on a cumulative basis, cash dividends, accrued on a daily basis,
whether or not declared and compounding semi-annually on July 31 and December 31 of each year, at a rate of
20% per annum on the sum of the liquidation value thereof plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon from,
and including, the date of issuance of such shares of Preferred stock until the date that the liquidation value and
accrued dividends are paid or the date which such Preferred stock is redeemed or acquired by the Company (whether
or not declared). The unrecorded accumulated and unpaid dividends at December 31, 2014 totaled $11.1 million;

(d) the preferred stock is subject to redemption by the Company at liquidation value plus all accrued but unpaid
dividends at the sole election of the Company;

(e) the preferred stock is not mandatorily redeemable, conditional nor does it contain any conversion options; and

(f) the preferred stockholders share voting rights with the common stock holders. Each holder of Series A Preferred
stock shall be entitled to 10,000 votes per share of Series A Preferred stock on all matters to be voted on by the
Company�s shareholders.

During 2014, the Company repurchased 81 shares of the Company�s Series A Preferred stock from former IDQ
employees, at a cost of approximately $88,000 and the shares were subsequently cancelled. The Company�s Series A
Preferred stock is not traded upon any public market.

Common Stock

In March 2014, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized common
stock to 400 million shares of common stock from the previous authorized number of 365 million shares. On
March 17, 2014, the Company issued 23.1 million shares of the Company�s common stock to the former shareholders
of IDQ Acq. Corp., as consideration for their sale of the outstanding common and preferred stock of IDQ Acq. Corp.
to the Company and its subsidiaries under the Stock Purchase Agreement. The shares were issued to Kinderhook,
IDQ�s largest shareholder, as well as members of IDQ�s s management team in exchange for their shares of IDQ� s
outstanding common stock and preferred stock. Since these shares are not traded on the public market, the Company
commissioned a valuation by an unrelated third-party valuation firm, in accordance with the guidance provided by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practice Guide, Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity
Securities Issued as Compensation, and assigned a fair value to the Common Stock issued to Kinderhook and former
management IDQ shareholders of $1.02 and $0.71 per share (discounted for lack of marketability), respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, Avista owned 91.3 % of the Company�s issued and outstanding common stock, with an
additional 7.1% owned by Kinderhook and the remaining aggregate 1.6% owned by Management Stockholders. The
Company�s common stock is not traded upon any public market.

Repurchase right
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Under the terms of the Stockholders� Agreement dated November 5, 2010, as amended, among the Company, Avista,
and the Management Stockholders, the Company has the option but not an obligation to repurchase all of the shares of
common stock held by former Company employees whether acquired directly on Acquisition or issued pursuant to the
exercise of stock options to former Company employees who terminate employment under certain circumstances. The
purchase price of the Company�s call option as prescribed in the
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Stockholders� Agreement is to be determined through a valuation of the Company�s common stock on a minority,
non-marketable interest basis or, under certain circumstances, based on cost, as defined therein. As there is no active
market for the Company�s common stock, the Company estimates the fair value of its common stock as determined by
the Board of Directors in good faith. If a participant in the 2010 AAG Stock Option Plan (See Note 14) were to
terminate employment with the Company, the Company�s exercise of its repurchase right under the Stockholders�
Agreement on shares received by the a Company employee through the exercise of stock options may require equity
awards to be expensed in the Company�s statement of comprehensive loss in the period in which the termination
occurs. During 2014, the Company repurchased 468,371 shares of the Company�s common stock from former
employees, at a cost of approximately $0.5 million.

Dividends

The Company has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock. The declaration of any future cash dividends is at
the discretion of the Company�s Board of Directors and depends upon its earnings, if any, our capital requirements and
financial position, its general economic conditions, and other pertinent conditions. It is the Company�s present
intention not to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future, but rather to reinvest earnings, if any, in its business
operations.

Note 14�Share Based Compensation Plans

The following table presents details of total share based compensation expense that is included in the Company�s
statements of comprehensive loss (in thousands):

Year ended
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
December 31,

2012
Cost of products sold ($  42) ($  15) $  13
Selling and administrative expenses (762) 260 243
Research and development costs (36) 15 10

Total share based compensation costs ($840) $290 $266

In November 2010, the Parent�s Board of Directors approved the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the �2010 AAG Option
Plan�), which authorized equity awards to be granted for up to 26,500,000 shares of Parent�s common stock. On
June 23, 2014, the Parent�s Board of Directors resolved to increase the authorized shares to 27,565,000. Under the
2010 AAG Option Plan, certain management and key employees of the Company have been or may be granted a
combination of time based and performance based options to purchase the Parent�s common stock. Share based
compensation expense related to employee grants under the 2010 AAG Option Plan has been reflected in these
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financial statements. However, during the third quarter of 2014, the Company determined that no compensation
expense should be recognized until an actual vesting event occurs. As a result, approximately $0.8 million of
compensation expense which was previously recognized for these grants was reversed. As of December 31, 2014,
equity awards for approximately 2,808,750 shares of Parent�s common stock remain available for grant under the 2010
AAG Option Plan.
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The Company utilizes an option pricing method employing a Black Scholes model to estimate the fair value of stock
options granted. The following weighted average assumptions were used for time based and performance based option
grants in the periods:

Year ended
December 31,

2014

Year ended
December 31,

2013

Year ended
December 31,

2012
Expected life 3.0 years 6.5 years 6.5 years
Expected volatility 80.0% 34.0% 35.0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.65% - 0.86% 1.23% - 2.03% 0.91% - 1.36%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Time based and performance based options expire ten years from the date of grant. The expected life of the stock
options on the option grants during the period is determined based on the average of the weighted vesting term and the
contractual term of the options. However, after the modification discussed below, the expected term was changed to
the remaining vesting period of 3 years. The Company estimates stock option forfeitures based on historical data and
will adjust the rate to expected forfeitures when Company-specific experience indicates a different trend. Expected
volatility for the period is determined consistently based on a five-company peer group, all of which have publicly
traded stock. The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield on a U.S. Treasury yield curve with a term
similar to the expected remaining term of the option on the date of the grant. Dividend yield for the period is
determined based on projected annual dividend payments.

Employees of the Company participate in the 2010 AAG Stock Option Plan. On June 23, 2014, the Company
modified the stock option grant agreements for certain employees participating in the Plan. In addition, the Company
granted additional options covering 2,385,000 shares to employees during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 at $1.00
per share. One half of the modified and newly granted options vest ratably over a five year period from the date of
grant/modification based upon the passage of time (the �Time Award�), while the remaining 50% of the options vest
upon the achievement of specified performance conditions as set forth in the grant agreements. The performance
condition can be met each fiscal year if certain EBITDA targets are achieved, subject to certain carry back and carry
forward provisions, or if a change of control occurs and the applicable return of capital target is met.
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for time based options under the 2010 AAG Stock Option Plan
for the periods presented (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Number of
Time based
Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price

Non-vested at December 31, 2012 4,708 1.02
Granted 935 1.00
Forfeited (614) 1.00
Vested (1,153) 1.01

Non-vested at December 31, 2013 3,876 1.02
Granted 5,628 1.00
Additional Time Based Shares from Modification 3,285 1.00
Forfeited (1,913) 1.00
Vested (0) 0.00

Non-vested at December 31, 2014 10,876 1.00
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 2,678 1.00

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 13,554 1.00

Under the 2010 AAG Option Plan, time based options vest ratably over the applicable service period, five years, on
each anniversary of the date of grant and, regardless, immediately upon a change in control event, subject to certain
conditions. However, Parent and holders of outstanding options covering 14,608,750 option shares and about 40
grants under the 2010 AAG Stock Option Plan agreed to revisions to the stock option award agreements. The
revisions effective June 23, 2014, included the following changes:

a) The vesting period for unvested time based option shares was extended to annual vesting ratably over 5
years from June 23, 2014;

b) 25% of the option shares designated for performance based vesting in participants� original grants were
revised to time based vesting, with annual vesting ratably over 5 years from June 23, 2014;
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c) The performance criteria for the remainder of the performance based option shares was revised to vest based
on the company achieving annual EBITDA targets which were designated in the revised grants; and

d) for performance based options shares, if they do not vest under scenario (c) above, the option shares may
vest under an alternative vesting criteria that is based on a target return of capital to stockholders. The return
of capital target is a scale of 2 to 3 times the stockholders original investment at such time as there is a
change of control of the Company�s ownership.

There have been no vested, time based stock options exercised to date under the 2010 AAG Stock Option Plan and no
cash received. The weighted average fair value per option of time based options granted in 2014, 2013 and 2012 was
$0.29, $0.15 and $0.15, respectively. The aggregate fair value of options vested in 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $0.0
million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively. At December 31, 2014, the total amount of unrecognized
compensation cost for time based options granted is $4.1 million. At December 31, 2014, vested and exercisable
options and total time based options outstanding have weighted average remaining contractual terms of 6.2 and
7.6 years, respectively, and carry no intrinsic value.
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The following table summarizes stock option activity for performance based options under the 2010 AAG Stock
Option Plan for the periods presented (in thousands, except per share and year amounts):

Number of
Performance

based
Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price

Non-vested at December 31, 2012 12,862 1.01
Granted 1,869 1.00
Forfeited (926) 1.00

Non-vested at December 31, 2013 13,805 1.01
Granted 5,528 1.00
Forfeited (4,844) 1.00
Converted to Time Based (3,285) 1.00

Non-vested and outstanding at December 31, 2014 11,204 1.00

Under the 2010 AAG Stock Option Plan, performance based options vest subject to a liquidity event (e.g., an initial
public offering or change in control, as defined) and based upon the attainment of specified minimum returns on
capital to Company�s shareholders. Compensation expense on performance based option grants is not recognized until
it is probable that the liquidity event will occur. For all periods the Company did not recognize share based
compensation expense related to its performance based grants given that the performance condition (a liquidity event)
has not occurred in any of those periods.

Because it is not probable that these performance based option grants will vest and no compensation expense is
recognized, the Company did not value these grants. At a time in which it becomes probable that the performance
option grants will vest the Company will have a valuation performed. At that time, the Company will disclose the total
compensation cost in their ending financial statements.

Note 15�Income Taxes

The (benefit) provision for income taxes on loss before income taxes, by tax jurisdiction, consisted of the following
(in thousands):

Year Ended
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December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

Current:
Federal $ 7,566 $ 3,006 $ 1,425
State 612 537 364
Foreign 1,329 892 1,783

Total current 9,507 4,435 3,572
Deferred:
Federal (20,023) (11,874) (11,060) 
State (598) (2,818) 1,206
Foreign 38 (518) (758) 

Total deferred (20,583) (15,210) (10,612) 

Total $ (11,076) $ (10,775) $ (7,040) 
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The components of loss before income taxes, by tax jurisdiction, were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
December 31,

2012
United States $ (31,562) $ (19,496) $ (24,878) 
Foreign (3,983) (4,667) (27,961) 

$ (35,545) $ (24,163) $ (52,839) 

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company�s effective tax rate on loss before income
taxes follows:

Year Ended
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
December 31,

2012
Statutory federal tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 
Non-deductible impairment of
goodwill �  �  (12.3) 
State taxes (net of federal tax benefits) 0.6 6.8 (1.8) 
Foreign rate differential (2.1) (2.0) (3.0) 
Domestic production activities
deduction 1.9 0.8 0.6
Acquisition related (2.0) �  0.4
Change in Valuation Allowance (1.7) (2.3) �  
UK interest deduction 4.9 2.5 1.3
Uncertain tax positions (2.0) �  �  
Other differences (3.5) 3.8 (6.9) 

Effective tax rate 31.1% 44.6% 13.3% 

The Company�s effective rate for 2014 differs from the statutory rate primarily due to differences in the foreign tax
rates when compared to the statutory rate, changes in valuation allowances relating to certain foreign jurisdictions and
uncertain tax positions. The Company�s effective benefit rate for 2013 differs from the statutory rate primarily due to
state taxes. Other items impacting the Company�s effective benefit rate relate primarily to deductible interest expense
in the U.K., and adjustments resulting from the filing of the income tax returns.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which
the differences are expected to be reversed. Significant deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following (in
thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Deferred tax assets:
Accrual and reserves $ 2,661 $ 1,841
Inventory costs 3,103 2,064
Acquisition related 9,738 2,225
Net operating losses 1,991 1,806
Other 312 �  

Total deferred tax assets 17,805 7,936

Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed and intangible assets (151,616) (93,388) 
Section 481(a) adjustments (260) �  

Total deferred tax liabilities (151,876) (93,388) 

Valuation allowance (1,204) (603) 

Net deferred tax liabilities $ (135,275) $ (86,055) 

The net deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the balance sheets as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Current deferred tax assets (included in other current assets) $ 5,451 $ 3,555
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (140,726) (89,610) 

Net deferred tax liabilities $ (135,275) $ (86,055) 
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The Company periodically reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability. A valuation allowance is established
when the Company believes that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be
realized. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had aggregate foreign net operating losses of approximately
$15.1 million, which is comprised of losses of $13.3 million, $1.7 million and $0.1 million in the United Kingdom,
China and other foreign jurisdictions, respectively. Losses in the United Kingdom are subject to an indefinite
carryforward period; however, due to limitations on the ability to utilize such losses to offset income from only certain
members of the United Kingdom group, a full valuation allowance has been provided on such losses. Losses in China
have a five year carryforward period and also carry a full valuation allowance.

In connection with Acquisition, Clorox has agreed to indemnify the Company for any taxes and interest associated
with the periods prior to November 4, 2010.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax
expense. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the total balance of accrued interest and penalties related
to uncertain tax positions was $0.3 million and $0.1 million, respectively.
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The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of the Company�s gross unrecognized tax
benefits (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
December 31,

2012
Unrecognized tax benefits�beginning of period $ 865 $ 379 $ 417
Gross increases�tax positions in prior periods 275 625 �  
Gross increase�current period tax positions 1,325 �  75
Reversal of accrual for prior year tax positions (43) �  �  
Statute of limitations lapse (57) (51) �  
Settlements (66) (88) (113) 

Unrecognized tax benefits�end of period $ 2,299 $ 865 $ 379

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $2.3 million,
and $0.9 million, respectively, which would affect the effective tax rate, if recognized. Of the 2014 and 2013 balances
above, $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively, relates to periods which were included within Clorox tax returns.
An offsetting receivable has been recorded in other assets for the Clorox indemnity as of December 31, 2014 and
2013. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had an uncertain tax position of $1.2 million which was offset against a
corresponding net operating loss in accordance with ASU 2013-11.

The Company is subject to exam by the U.S. federal, state, and foreign tax authorities on its filings since 2011. During
2013, the U.S. federal tax return filed by the Company for 2010 was examined by the IRS, and resulted in no change.

In the twelve months succeeding December 31, 2014, the Company expects total unrecognized tax benefits to change
by $0.1 million due to the lapse of statute of limitations on a portion of the unrecognized tax benefit indemnified by
Clorox. Audit outcomes and the timing of audit settlements are subject to significant uncertainty.

The Company provides for U.S. income taxes on the earnings of foreign subsidiaries unless the earnings are
considered indefinitely invested outside of the U.S. No provision has been made for U.S. income taxes or foreign
withholding taxes on $0.8 million of cumulative unremitted earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2014 due to the Company�s existing tax structure, existing tax law and the Company�s intention to
indefinitely reinvest these earnings outside of the U.S. The Company determined that the calculation of the amount of
unrecognized deferred tax liability related to these cumulative unremitted earnings was not practicable. If these
earnings were distributed to the Company�s U.S. entity, the Company would be subject to additional U.S. income taxes
and foreign withholding taxes would be reduced by available foreign tax credits.
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Note 16�Retirement Income and Health Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company established a defined contribution plan in the United States for the Company�s employees that contain
two components, a 401(k) component and a profit-sharing component, which qualifies as a tax deferred savings plan
under Section 401(k) of the IRC (�The Plan�). Eligible U.S. employees may contribute a percentage of their pre-tax
compensation, subject to certain IRC limitations. The Plan provides for employer matching contributions to be made
up to $1,000 per year and profit sharing contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company�s
aggregate cost of the defined contribution plans was (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,

2014

December 31,

2013

December 31,

2012
$420 $804 $1,622

Union Pension Fund Withdrawal Liability

On June 30, 2000, IDQ Operating, under its former management, withdrew from the Local 29 RWDSU Pension Fund
(EIN #13-2669167) and, as a result, affected a complete withdrawal from the fund, within the meaning of
Section 4203(a) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Consequently, the Company is subject to
the payment of a withdrawal liability to the fund. Beginning on April 1, 2001, this liability is payable on a quarterly
basis in the amount of $12,509, including interest. The annual amount contributed to the plan by the Company and
charged to expense in 2014 was $37,459.

The Company contribution to the plan was approximately 12.5% of total contributions of approximately $0.4 million,
made by employers and the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corp. Based on the latest information available, the plan�s
actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits is approximately $3.3 million. At December 31, 2014, this
liability included in other liabilities amounted to $0.7 million.

Note 17�Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events from the balance sheet date through April 17, 2015, the date at which the financial
statements were available to be issued, and determined that there are no other items to disclose.
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March 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

(Unaudited)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,550 $ 47,948
Restricted cash 3,677 3,676
Accounts receivable, net 116,873 69,845
Inventories 60,784 63,305
Other current assets 15,898 13,459

Total current assets 239,782 198,233

Property, plant and equipment, net 29,855 31,008
Goodwill 519,804 523,363
Intangible assets, net 466,610 481,689
Deferred financing costs, net 1,872 2,158
Other assets 99 99

Total assets $ 1,258,022 $ 1,236,550

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 30,488 $ 16,279
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 64,291 46,023
Current portion of long-term debt, less discount 3,000 3,000

Total current liabilities 97,779 65,302

Long-term debt, net of premium, discount and current portion 810,867 811,323
Other liabilities 4,271 4,161
Deferred income taxes 137,572 140,726

Total liabilities 1,050,489 1,021,512

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders� Equity:

Series A Preferred Stock ($0.01 par value, 150,000 shares authorized, 67,312
issued and outstanding at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014) 1 1
Common stock ($0.01 par value, 400,000,000 and 365,000,000 shares 2,884 2,884
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authorized, 288,384,891 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014)
Additional paid-in capital 352,693 352,693
Accumulated deficit (122,987) (123,440) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (25,058) (17,100) 

Total shareholders� equity 207,533 215,038

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 1,258,022 $ 1,236,550

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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(In thousands)

Three months ended
March 31,

2015 2014
Net sales $ 119,445 $ 86,268
Cost of products sold 68,120 45,109

Gross profit 51,325 41,159
Operating expenses:
Selling expenses 4,991 4,262
General and administrative expenses 9,696 11,905
Advertising costs 3,240 5,409
Research and development costs 733 620
Depreciation and amortization 12,334 9,672

Total operating expenses 30,994 31,868

Operating profit 20,331 9,291
Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense 19,317 13,181
Other expense (income), net 405 (333) 

Income (loss) before income taxes 609 (3,557) 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 156 (876) 

Net income (loss) $ 453 ($ 2,681) 

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation loss (7,958) (1,892) 

Comprehensive loss ($ 7,505) ($ 4,573) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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(In thousands)

Three months ended
March 31,

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 453 $ (2,681) 
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 15,126 12,456
Share based compensation �  27
Deferred income taxes (3,784) (3,598) 
Other charges 171 2
Cash effects of changes, net of acquisition effects in:
Accounts receivable (47,094) (18,550) 
Inventories 2,520 (4,397) 
Other current assets (1,131) (1,965) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 32,062 21,542
Other (1,558) 102

Net cash provided by operating activities (3,235) 2,938

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of IDQ Acquisition Corp, net of cash acquired �  (40,234) 
Capital expenditures (1,050) (342) 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 15 �  

Net cash used in investing activities (1,035) (40,576) 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on notes payable (750) (9,750) 
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock �  62,000
Repurchase of common stock �  (50) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (750) 52,200

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (378) 32

Net increase (decrease) in cash (5,398) 14,594
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 47,948 26,038

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period $ 42,550 $ 40,632
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Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid for interest $ 4,350 $ 4,726

Cash paid for income taxes $ 4,179 $ 555

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
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Note 1�The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc. (�Armored AutoGroup�, �AAG� or �the Company�) is a consumer products company
consisting of industry leading and highly recognizable brands in the automotive aftermarket appearance products:
Armor All®; performance chemicals categories, STP®; and, newly acquired products in the do-it-yourself (DIY) air
conditioner recharge and retrofit kits and related products: A/C PRO, Arctic Freeze®, Sub Zero®, and Super Seal®
Stop Leak.

On March 17, 2014, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Armored AutoGroup, Inc. and AAG IDQ
Acquisition Corporation, acquired a 100% equity interest in IDQ Acquisition Corp. (�IDQ� or �IDQ Acq. Corp.�). IDQ is
a leading manufacturer of do-it-yourself air conditioner recharge and retrofit kits and related products for the
automotive aftermarket.

Armored AutoGroup delivers its products to distributors, resellers and end users (collectively the customers) through
its direct operations in the United States, Canada, Mexico, Australia, China and the United Kingdom and distributor
relationships in approximately 50 countries. The Armor All and STP brands offer multiple automotive appearance and
performance chemicals that can be found in most of the major developed countries around the world. IDQ products
are sold in over 25,000 retail stores principally in the United States under the brands A/C PRO, Arctic Freeze®, Sub
Zero®, and Super Seal® Stop Leak.

In September 2010, Viking Acquisition Inc., an entity owned by affiliates of Avista Capital Holdings, L.P. (�Avista�),
entered into an agreement to acquire the AutoCare Products Business, Armor All, STP and certain other brands from
Clorox pursuant to the terms of a Purchase and Sale Agreement dated September 21, 2010 (the �Acquisition�). The
Acquisition closed on November 5, 2010 and included employees in the United States and other countries dedicated to
the Company, related product patent and developed technology and certain other assets, including the manufacturing
facilities located in Painesville, Ohio and Wales, U.K. Viking Acquisition Inc. was subsequently renamed as Armored
AutoGroup Inc. (�AAG Inc.�). The Company indirectly owns 91.3% of AAG Inc.�s issued and outstanding capital stock
through its direct subsidiary and AAG Inc.�s direct parent, Armored AutoGroup Intermediate Inc. (�Intermediate�). The
Company granted a 7.1% stake in the common equity of the Company to Kinderhook Industries on March 17, 2014,
as a component of the consideration for the sale of its ownership interest in IDQ to the Company. In addition,
members of IDQ�s management acquired an additional 1.6% common equity interest as a component of the
consideration for the sale of their ownership interest in IDQ.

References to �Armored AutoGroup� or the �Company� herein, refer collectively to Armored AutoGroup Parent, Inc., as
well as all of its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise specified.

Basis of Presentation

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (�U.S. GAAP�). The Company�s fiscal year end is December 31. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
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The Company�s appearance and air conditioner products sales are seasonal and can be impacted by weather. Sales are
typically higher in the first half of the calendar year as the Company�s customers purchase inventory for the spring and
summer seasons when weather is warmer than in the northern hemisphere in the fall and winter months. This pattern
is largely reflective of our customers� seasonal purchasing patterns, as well as the timing of
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our promotional activities. Weather can also influence consumer behavior, especially for appearance and air
conditioner products. Both product lines sell best during warm and dry weather, and less if weather is cold and wet.
For these reasons, among others, the Company�s results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of future
quarterly results and, accordingly, period-to-period comparisons should not be relied upon as an indication of future
performance. The Company builds moderate levels of working capital and inventory in advance of and during the
peak selling season. Working capital is also impacted by increases in accounts receivable, which increase significantly
during the peak selling period and are typically lowest in the fourth quarter of the year.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies are the functional currencies for substantially all of the Company�s foreign operations, with the
exception of the Company�s United Kingdom (�U.K.�) operation, whose functional currency was the U.S. dollar, during
2014 and prior. Subsequently, in early 2015 the Company�s U.K. entity switched their functional currency from the
U.S. dollar to the British Pound sterling. An entity�s functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. Management determined in early 2015 that due to a change in the manner in
which the U. K. entity operates, that a switch in the functional currency to the British Pound sterling from the U. S.
dollar was necessary.

When the transactional currency is different than the functional currency, transaction gains and losses are included as
a component of other expense, net in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss. Assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the respective balance sheet
reporting date. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate during the period. Gains and losses on
foreign currency translations are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss. Deferred taxes
are not provided on cumulative translation adjustments as the Company expects earnings of its foreign subsidiary to
be indefinitely reinvested.

Acquisitions

The Company accounts for acquired businesses using the purchase method of accounting. Under the purchase method,
the Company�s consolidated financial statements include the operations of an acquired business from the date of
acquisition. In addition, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at the date of acquisition at their
respective estimated fair values, with any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the net assets
acquired recorded as goodwill.

Determining the fair value of certain assets and liabilities acquired is judgmental in nature and often involves the use
of significant estimates and assumptions. The Company typically uses an income method to estimate the fair value of
intangible assets, which is based on forecasts of the expected future cash flows attributable to the respective assets.
Significant estimates and assumptions inherent in the valuations reflect a consideration of other marketplace
participants and include the amount and timing of future cash flows, the underlying product life cycles, the economic
barriers to entry and the discount rate applied to the cash flows. Actual results may differ from our estimates.

Finite Lived Intangible Assets
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Amortization of intangible assets with finite lives (patents, customer relationships and licensing arrangements) is
recognized over estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 16 years, which the Company believes reasonably represents
the time period in which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed or otherwise realized. The
Company has experienced a negligible attrition rate in its customer base, and is not able to identify a reliable pattern
of attrition and, as such, is utilizing the straight-line amortization method to amortize
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customer relationship intangible assets. Finite lived intangible assets are reviewed for possible impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
There have been no instances of impairment identified.

Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

The Company tests its trademarks and brand names with indefinite lives for impairment annually as of the first day of
the fourth quarter, unless there are indications during an interim period that these assets are more likely than not to
have become impaired. For trademarks and brand names with indefinite lives, impairment occurs when the carrying
amount of an asset is greater than its estimated fair value. An impairment charge is recorded for the difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value. The Company uses an income approach, the relief-from-royalty
method, to estimate the fair value of its trademarks and trade names with indefinite lives. This method assumes that, in
lieu of ownership, a third party would be willing to pay a royalty in order to obtain the rights to use the comparable
asset. The determination of the fair values of trademarks and brand name assets with indefinite lives requires
significant judgments in determining both the assets� estimated cash flows as well as the appropriate discount and
royalty rates applied to those cash flows to determine fair value. Changes in such estimates or the application of
alternative assumptions could produce different results.

Goodwill

The Company tests its goodwill for impairment annually as of the first day of the fourth quarter unless there are
indications during an interim period that these assets are more likely than not to have become impaired. The Company
has four geographical reporting units under the AAG Inc. entity and one reporting unit under the IDQ entity. The first
step of the goodwill impairment test is to compare the fair value of each reporting unit to its carrying amount to
determine if there is potential impairment. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, the
second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss.

The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit�s goodwill with
the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit�s goodwill exceeds the implied fair
value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of
goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. That is,
the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit (including any
unrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination at the date of the
evaluation and the fair value was the purchase price paid to acquire the reporting unit.

The Company estimates the fair value of reporting units using a weighting of fair values derived from an income
approach and a market approach. Determining the fair value of a reporting unit under the first step of the goodwill
impairment test and determining the fair value of individual assets and liabilities of a reporting unit (including
unrecognized intangible assets) under the second step of the goodwill impairment test is inherently subjective in
nature and often involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions based on known facts and circumstances at
the time the Company performs the valuation. The use of different assumptions, inputs and judgments or changes in
circumstances could materially affect the results of the valuation and could have a significant impact on whether or
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not an impairment charge is recognized and the magnitude of any such charge.

Income approach�To determine fair value, the Company uses a DCF approach for each of the reporting units. Under
this approach, the Company estimates the future cash flows of each reporting unit and discounts these cash flows at a
rate of return that reflects their relative risk. The cash flows used in the DCF are consistent
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with the Company�s long-range forecasts, and give consideration to historic and projected long-term business trends
and strategies. The other key estimates and factors used in the DCF include, but are not limited to, discount rates,
future sales volumes, revenue and expense growth rates, changes in working capital, capital expenditure forecasts,
foreign exchange rates, currency devaluation, inflation, and a perpetuity growth rate.

Market approach�The Company uses the guideline public company method to select reasonably similar/guideline
publicly traded companies for each of the Company�s reporting units. Using the guideline public company method, the
Company calculates earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (�EBITDA�) multiples for each of the
public companies using both historical and forecasted EBITDA figures. By applying these multiples to the appropriate
historical and forecasted EBITDA figures for each reporting unit, fair value estimates are calculated.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, goodwill decreased by $3.6 million due to currency translation.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized when title to the product, ownership and risk of loss transfer to the customer, which can be on the
date of shipment or the date of receipt by the customer and when all of the following have occurred: a firm sales
arrangement exists, pricing is fixed and determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Revenue includes shipping
and handling costs, which generally are included in the list price to the customer. Taxes collected from customers and
remitted to governmental authorities are not included in sales. A provision for payment discounts and product return
allowances is recorded as a reduction of sales in the same period that the revenue is recognized.

The Company routinely commits to on-going and one-time trade promotion programs with customers, consisting
primarily of customer pricing allowances, merchandising funds and consumer coupons offered through various
programs to customers and consumers. Accruals for expected payouts under these programs are included as accrued
marketing and promotion in the accrued expenses and other liabilities line item in the consolidated balance sheets and
are recorded as a reduction of sales in the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss.

Amounts received by the Company from the licensing of certain trademarks are recorded as deferred revenue on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and are recognized in net sales on a straight-line basis over the term of the licensing
agreement when the underlying royalties are earned.

Cost of Products Sold

Cost of products sold is primarily comprised of direct materials and supplies consumed in the manufacturing of
product, as well as manufacturing labor, depreciation expense, direct overhead expense necessary to acquire and
convert the purchased materials and supplies into finished product, contract manufacturing costs, and provisions for
inventory losses (including losses relating to excess and obsolete inventory). Cost of products sold also includes the
cost to distribute products to customers, inbound freight costs, internal transfer costs, warehousing costs and other
shipping and handling activity, as well as costs associated with developing and designing new packaging.

Income Taxes
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The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for income taxes. For purposes of the unaudited interim
condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company calculates tax with reference to the anticipated effective
tax rate for the annual financial period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
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the anticipated future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the financial statement amounts and
their respective tax bases. Management reviews the Company�s deferred tax assets to determine whether their value
can be realized based upon available evidence. A valuation allowance is established when management believes that it
is more likely than not that some portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be realized. Changes in valuation
allowances from period to period are included in the Company�s tax provision in the period of change. In addition to
valuation allowances, the Company provides for uncertain tax positions when such tax positions do not meet the
recognition thresholds or measurement standards prescribed by accounting guidance on the accounting for uncertainty
in income taxes. Amounts for uncertain tax positions are adjusted when new information becomes available or when
positions are effectively settled.

As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company has $5.0 million of goodwill, which is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform the prior period data to the current presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on reported net loss or comprehensive loss.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) ASU
No. 2015-03�Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, which requires that debt issuance costs be presented
in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the debt liability to which they relate, consistent
with debt discounts, as opposed to being presented as assets. The ASU is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods in fiscal years that begin after December 15, 2015 and requires retrospective application. The adoption of this
update on January 1, 2016 is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. As of
March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the unamortized deferred financing costs recorded on the Company�s balance
sheets were $3.2 million and $3.6 million, respectively.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, �Consolidation (Topic 10): Amendments to the Consolidation
Analysis� (�ASU 2015-02�). The ASU provides guidance on the consolidation evaluation for reporting organizations that
are required to evaluate whether they should consolidate certain legal entities. In accordance with ASU 2015-02, all
legal entities are subject to reevaluation under the revised consolidation model. ASU 2015-02 will be effective for the
Company in its first quarter of fiscal 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of
the ASU on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15�Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity�s Ability to Continue
as a Going Concern. The ASU requires management to evaluate whether there are conditions and events that raise
substantial doubt about the entity�s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the financial statements
are issued and, if so, to disclose that fact. The ASU requires management to make this evaluation for both the annual
and interim reporting periods, if applicable. Management is also required to evaluate and disclose whether its plans
alleviate that doubt. The ASU is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016 and interim periods
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within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The ASU
clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue and develops a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards (�IFRS�) that removes inconsistencies and weaknesses in revenue
requirements, provides a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues, improves comparability
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of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions and capital markets, provides more useful
information to users of the financial statements through improved disclosure requirements and simplifies the
preparation of financial statements by reducing the number of requirements to which an entity must refer. For
nonpublic entities, ASU No. 2014-09 is effective for the annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017,
and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. A nonpublic entity may elect to apply
this guidance earlier as follows: (1) an annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim
periods within that reporting period, (2) an annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim
periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017 (3) an annual reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company is assessing the impact of
the adoption of the ASU on its financial statements, disclosure requirements and methods of adoption.

On April 1, 2015, the FASB proposed a one-year deferral of the effective date for its new revenue standard for public
and nonpublic entities reporting under U.S. GAAP. Under the proposal, the standard would be effective for public
entities for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods therein. Nonpublic
entities would be required to adopt the new standard for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018,
and interim periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

The proposal also would permit both public and nonpublic entities to adopt the standard as early as the original public
entity effective date (i.e., annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and interim periods therein).
Early adoption prior to that date would not be permitted. The FASB has issued an exposure draft on the proposal and
expects to seek public comment with a 30-day comment period.

Note 2�Acquisition of IDQ Acquisition Corp. and Related-Party Transactions

On March 17, 2014, the Company, in conjunction with its wholly owned subsidiaries, AAG Inc., and AAG IDQ
Acquisition Corporation, the Company�s direct wholly-owned subsidiary (�AcquisitionCo�) collectively acquired 100%
of the common stock of IDQ Acquisition Corp., pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 17, 2014
(the �AAG Purchase Agreement�), by and among the Company, AAG Inc., AcquisitionCo, IDQ Acq. Corp., the then
existing stockholders of IDQ Acq. Corp., and a Contribution Agreement, dated March 17, 2014 (the �Contribution
Agreement�), by and among the Company and the then existing stockholders of IDQ Acq. Corp. (�the March 17
Acquisition�) for an aggregate purchase price of $97.1 million. The acquisition did not result in the Company or any of
its subsidiaries becoming an obligor of IDQ�s debt instruments and IDQ did not become an obligor of the Company or
any of the Company�s other subsidiaries� debt instruments.

The acquisition of IDQ expands the Company�s consumer product portfolio in the automotive aftermarket industry, as
it is a leading manufacturer of do-it-yourself air conditioner recharge and retrofit kits and related products which are
sold in over 25,000 retail stores principally in the United States. In accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinations, the change in control was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting by the Company.
As such, the assets and liabilities of IDQ were recorded at their estimated fair value on March 17, 2014.

Pursuant to the AAG Purchase Agreement, immediately prior to the execution of said Agreement, the existing
stockholders of IDQ Acq. Corp., pursuant to the Contribution Agreement noted above, collectively contributed
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186,541 of their common stock in IDQ to the Company in exchange for common and preferred shares in AAG Parent
representing a total estimated fair value of $28.4 million. The remaining 458,177 issued and outstanding shares of
common stock of IDQ were purchased from the existing stockholders for a total $70.0
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million. In addition, at the time of the close, IDQ paid $1.3 million in third party professional fees and expenses that
were incurred by AAG Inc. in connection with the acquisition, which was recorded as a reduction of the total
consideration exchanged.

IDQ obtained consents for the change in control from its creditors through amendments to the indentures governing
the IDQ Holdings $220 million Notes and the IDQ Acq. Corp. $45 million Notes, and an amendment to the IDQ
Holdings� Revolving Credit Facility, in consideration of payments of $0.6 million, $0.7 million and $0.1 million,
respectively (See Note 4). In addition, the creditors consented to the payments of acquisition related transaction costs,
such as advisory, legal and other professional fees, of up to $8.0 million, of which $5.6 million was expensed and
included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statements of comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company finalized its valuation of the acquisition date fair values of the
consideration transferred, and the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Based on that assessment, management
determined that the acquisition resulted in goodwill of $166.6 million, which is attributable to expected synergies and
other benefits that will result from combining certain operations of IDQ and AAG Inc.

In conjunction with the original Acquisition, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement (�TSA�) with
Clorox whereby Clorox would provide certain services, equipment and office space to the Company. Additionally
under the TSA, the Company provided certain services to Clorox. Related party transactions and activities involving
Clorox are not always consummated on terms equivalent to those that would prevail in an arm�s-length transaction
where conditions of competitive, free-market dealings may exist. On November 1, 2011, the Company completed the
transition of its North American and export operations from Clorox provisioning to standalone operations. The
Company completed the transition of certain international operations from Clorox in the second quarter of 2012 and
terminated the remaining service components of the TSA.

Avista

Avista owns approximately 91.3% of the Company. As a result, Avista has the power to elect our board of directors
and has the ability to exercise significant influence or control over the Company�s operations.

The Company has entered into a monitoring agreement with Avista and affiliates of Avista whereby Avista provides
services for a fixed fee of $1.0 million annually to the Company. Selling, general and administrative expenses,
including out of pocket expenses related to this monitoring agreement were (in thousands):

Three months ended
  March 31,  

2015
  March 31,  

2014
Avista monitoring agreement fees $ 383 $ 250
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In connection with the Original Acquisition and the issuance of its long-term debt, the Company paid $4.1 million to
Avista and affiliates of Avista for consulting expenses and recorded these as deferred financing costs which are
amortized over the term of the debt using the effective interest method. Related amortization expense was (in
thousands):

Three months ended
  March 31,  

2015
  March 31,  

2014
Amortization of Avista consulting expenses $ 148 $ 150
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Consulting Agreements

Michael Klein, who serves as the Company�s Chief Executive Officer, is the sole member of Las Colinas Investments,
LLC, which is entitled to receive $125,280 per annum from IDQ Operating, Inc., a subsidiary of IDQ Acq. Corp.,
pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, the Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2013, as
amended, subject to an aggregate cap of $360,000 following April 1, 2014. Gerard Rooney, who serves as the
Company�s Executive Vice President of Operations, is the sole member of Windy Hill Investments LLC, which is
entitled to receive $83,250 per annum from IDQ Operating, Inc. pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions
of, the Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2013, as amended, subject to an aggregate cap of $240,000
following April 1, 2014. Under the terms of the Board Service and Consulting Agreements, dated as of June 1, 2014
and March 17, 2014, respectively, Ms. Kranc and Mr. Yurko are each entitled to receive $50,000 per annum from the
Company for their board service and consulting services. In consideration for services rendered in connection with the
IDQ investment, Mr. Yurko received a transaction fee equal to $250,000 per the terms of the consulting agreement. In
June 2014, Ms. Kranc was granted 100,000 stock options, per the terms of her consulting agreement.

Kinderhook Industries

Under the terms of the IDQ Acquisition, Kinderhook Industries, which formerly owned 88% of IDQ Acq. Corp.,
received a 7.1% stake in the common equity of the Company, as a component of the consideration for the sale of its
ownership interest in IDQ Acq. Corp. Kinderhook had a monitoring agreement whereby Kinderhook provides services
for a fixed fee of $1.7 million annually to IDQ Acq. Corp. The agreement was amended in March 2014 to cap future
payments to Kinderhook at a total of $5.0 million. Selling, general and administrative expenses, including out of
pocket expenses related to this monitoring agreement were $0.3 million during the quarter ended March 31, 2015.

Directors and Officers

In connection with the Acquisition and issuance of the AAG�s long-term debt, the Company incurred costs of $1.8
million for consulting expenses from individuals that later became directors and officers of the Company. Of this
amount, $0.4 million was paid to certain directors and officers of the Company and $1.4 million was reinvested in the
Company through the purchase of common stock. Of these consulting expenses, $1.3 million was recorded in 2010
with the remaining $0.5 million deferred and amortized over the term of the respective debt using the effective interest
method. Related amortization expense was (in thousands):

Three months ended
  March 31,  

2015
  March 31,  

2015
Amortization of directors� and officers� consulting expenses $ 17 $ 17

The Company engaged Charles McIlvaine, a former Director of the Company, to provide services associated with
corporate development and other strategic initiatives on a consulting basis.
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Note 3�Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

March 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

Finished goods $ 41,807 $ 43,600
Work in process 1,099 1,750
Raw materials and packaging 20,146 20,271
Allowances for obsolescence (2,268) (2,316) 

$ 60,784 $ 63,305

Note 4�Fair Value Measurement of Assets and Liabilities

The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company established a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value which is intended to increase
consistency and comparability and related disclosures. An asset or liability�s classification is based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement and is disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1�Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2�Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3�Unobservable inputs reflecting the reporting entity�s own assumptions.

The Company�s financial instruments consist of cash, trade accounts receivable, trade accounts payable and long-term
debt. Due to their short-term maturity, the carrying amounts of cash, trade accounts receivable and trade accounts
payable approximate their fair market values. The carrying and fair values of the Company�s long-term debt were as
follows (in thousands):

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

AAG Term Loan $ 275,273 $ 278,250 $ 275,611 $ 278,303
AAG Senior Notes- 9.75%, due 2018 $ 269,191 $ 279,125 $ 268,858 $ 273,625
IDQ Holdings- Senior Secured Notes- 11.5%, due 2017 $ 223,052 $ 224,400 $ 223,390 $ 224,400
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IDQ Acq. Corp.- Senior Secured Notes- 14.0%, due 2017 $ 46,351 $ 46,800 $ 46,464 $ 46,800
The fair value of the Term Loan and Senior Notes was determined using broker quotes (Level 2). The broker quotes
are determined on an analysis of discounted cash flows together with applicable forward LIBOR rates.

Note 5�Litigation and Other Legal Matters

The Company is subject to various lawsuits and claims relating to issues such as contract disputes, product liability,
patents and trademarks, advertising, employee and other matters. Although the results of claims and litigation cannot
be predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of management that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have
a material adverse effect, individually or in the aggregate, on the Company�s financial position or results of operations.
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In connection with the Acquisition, Clorox retained liability associated with a potential contract claim and the
Company has agreed to indemnify and reimburse Clorox for 50% of the first $5.0 million in costs related to the
contract claim. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company has accrued a $2.5 million long-term
liability related to this contingency, which is included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Note 6�Income Taxes

The company�s effective tax rate was as follows:

Three months ended
March 31,
2015

March 31,
2014

Effective tax rate 25.6% 24.6% 

The Company�s effective rate for 2015 differs from the statutory rate primarily due to differences in the foreign tax
rates when compared to the statutory rate, changes in valuation allowances relating to certain foreign jurisdictions and
uncertain tax positions. Other items impacting the Company�s effective benefit rate relate primarily to deductible
interest expense in the U.K., and adjustments resulting from the filing of the income tax returns.

Note 7�Subsequent Events

On April 28, 2015, AAG Parent entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the �Merger Agreement�) with
Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. (�Spectrum Brands Holdings�), Ignite Merger Sub, Inc. (�Ignite�), a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of Spectrum Brands, Inc., and Avista Capital Partners II GP, LLC, as representative of the stockholders and
the optionholders of AAG Parent. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on May 20, 2015,Ignite merged with and into
AAG Parent and with AAG Parent surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Spectrum Brands Holdings,
Inc. The merger consideration was approximately $1.4 billion in cash and assumed debt (subject to customary
adjustments for cash, debt and net working capital), as well as approximately $56 million of transaction costs. Further,
each share of common stock of AAG Parent issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the
Merger was cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive $1.7696 in cash.

In connection with the closing of the Merger and immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, each
outstanding, unexpired and unexercised option to purchase shares of AAG Parent common stock (each, a �AAG
Option�), that was granted under any equity incentive plan of AAG, including the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the �2010
Equity Plan�), whether or not then exercisable or vested, was accelerated, vested and cancelled and converted into the
right to receive an amount in cash (subject to any applicable withholding taxes) equal to the product of (A) the total
number of shares of AAG Parent common stock subject to such AAG Option as of immediately prior to the effective
time of the Merger and (B) the excess, if any, of the Per Share Cash Merger Consideration over the exercise price per
share (the �Option Price�) of such AAG Option (the �Option Payment�).
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In connection with the closing of the Merger and immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, each issued
and outstanding share of AAG Parent Series A preferred stock, was cancelled and converted automatically into the
right to receive; (i) $1,000.00 liquidation value for each preferred share issued and outstanding and (ii) $254.58 in
accrued and unpaid dividends for each preferred share issued and outstanding at May 20, 2015.
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Effect of Merger on Debt

Credit Agreement

At the closing of the Merger, AAG�s credit agreement was terminated, and paid in full and the balance due of
approximately $282 million was paid in full.

Change of Control Tender Offer

In June 2015, Spectrum redeemed any and all of the outstanding series of the: (i) $275 million of Armored
AutoGroup, Inc. 9.25% Senior Notes due November 1, 2018; (ii) the $220 million of IDQ Holdings, Inc. 11.50%
Senior Secured Notes due April 1, 2017; and (iii) the $45 million of 14.00% Senior Secured Notes due October 1,
2017. The redemptions were completed in June 2015 and required Spectrum to pay: (i) $1,046.25 per $1,000 principal
amount of the Armored AutoGroup, Inc. 9.25% Senior Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest; (ii) $1,047.50 per
$1,000 principal amount of the IDQ Holdings, Inc. 11.50% Senior Secured Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest;
(iii) $1,070.00 per $1,000 principal amount of the IDQ Holdings, Inc. 14.00% Senior Secured Notes, plus accrued and
unpaid interest. On June 15, 2015, a payment of $290.8 million, based on a principal amount of $275 million of notes
and $12.7 million of accrued interest was paid. On June 22, 2015, a payment of $287.9 million, based on a principal
amount of $265 million of notes and $7.1 million of accrued interest was paid.
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SPECTRUM BRANDS, INC.

Until                     ,         , all dealers effecting transactions in these securities, whether or not participating in this
exchange offer, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to the obligation of dealers to deliver a
prospectus when acting as underwriters and with respect to their unsold allotments or subscriptions. No person has
been authorized to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in this prospectus,
and, if given or made, any information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized. This
prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than the
securities to which it relates or an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy these securities in any
circumstances in which this offer or solicitation is unlawful. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale made
under this prospectus shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in our
affairs since the date of this prospectus.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Delaware law permits a corporation to adopt a provision in its certificate of incorporation eliminating or limiting the
personal liability of a director, but not an officer in his or her capacity as such, to the corporation or its stockholders
for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except that such provision shall not eliminate or limit
the liability of a director for (1) any breach of the director�s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders,
(2) acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law,
(3) liability under section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the �DGCL�) for unlawful payment of
dividends or stock purchases or redemptions or (4) any transaction from which the director derived an improper
personal benefit. Our certificate of incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted under the DGCL, none
of our directors will be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty
as a director.

Under Section 145 of the DGCL, a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be
made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, other than an action by or in the right
of the corporation, by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the
corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation or other enterprise, against expenses, including attorneys� fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding if: (1) he or she acted in good faith
and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and
(2) with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, he or she had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her
conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or
upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that a person did not act in
good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his or her
conduct was unlawful. A corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a
party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit brought by or in the right of the corporation to procure a
judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the
corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation or other enterprise, against expenses, including attorneys� fees, actually and reasonably incurred in
connection with such action or suit if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be
in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, except that no indemnification will be made if the person is
found liable to the corporation unless and to the extent that, in such a case, the court determines the person is
nonetheless entitled to indemnification for such expenses. A corporation must also indemnify a present or former
director or officer who has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding, or
in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, against expenses, including attorneys� fees, actually and reasonably
incurred by him or her. Expenses, including attorneys� fees, incurred by a director, officer, employee or agent, in
defending civil, criminal administrative or investigative actions, suits or proceedings may be paid by the corporation
in advance of the final disposition of such actions, suits or proceedings upon, in the case of a current director or
officer, receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to repay such amount if it shall ultimately
be determined that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified by the corporation. Such expenses incurred by former
directors or officers may be so paid upon such terms and conditions, if any, as the corporation deems appropriate. The
provisions of Section 145 regarding indemnification and the advancement of expenses is not exclusive of any other
rights a person may be entitled to under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or
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Section 174 of the DGCL provides, among other things, that a director, who willfully or negligently approves of an
unlawful payment of dividends or an unlawful stock purchase or redemption, may be held liable
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for such actions. A director who was either absent when the unlawful actions were approved or dissented at the time,
may avoid liability by causing his or her dissent to such actions to be entered in the books containing the minutes of
the meetings of the board of directors at the time such action occurred or immediately after such absent director
receives notice of the unlawful acts.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws generally provide for mandatory indemnification of directors and officers
to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Delaware law also provides that a corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or
was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a
director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or other entity, against any liability asserted against and
incurred by such person, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such
liability. We will maintain, at our expense, an insurance policy that insures our officers and directors, subject to
customary exclusions and deductions, against specified liabilities that may be incurred in those capacities.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Exhibits
See the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature pages included in this Registration Statement.

(b) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedules for the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, are as follows:

Schedule II�Consolidated valuation and qualifying accounts.

Schedule I, III, IV, and V are not applicable and have therefore been omitted.

Item 22. Undertakings

(a) Each of the undersigned registrants hereby undertakes:

(1) to file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this
registration statement:

(i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the �Securities
Act�);

(ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration
statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the
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aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total
dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from
the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of
prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) pursuant to Rule 424(b) if,
in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the
maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the �Calculation of Registration Fee� table in the effective
registration statement; and

(iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in
the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.
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(2) that, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each such post-effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and
the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof;

(3) to remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered
which remain unsold at the termination of the offering;

(4) that, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act to any purchaser, each prospectus filed
pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part of a registration statement relating to an offering, other than registration
statements relying on Rule 430B or other than prospectuses filed in reliance on Rule 430A, shall be deemed
to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the date it is first used after effectiveness.
Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the
registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the
registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a
time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the
registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document
immediately prior to such date of first use.

(5) that, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act to any purchaser in the
initial distribution of the securities: The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of
securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting
method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by
means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser
and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required
to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned
registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material
information about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the
undersigned registrant; and

(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the
purchaser.

(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by
reference into the prospectus pursuant to Item 4, 10(b), 11 or 13 of this form, within one business day of receipt
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of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This
includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to the effective date of the registration statement
through the date of responding to the request.

(c) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information
concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and
included in the registration statement when it became effective.

(d) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers
and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has
been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act
and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than
the payment by the registrants of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the
registrants in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of
its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the
question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed
by the final adjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

SPECTRUM BRANDS, INC.

By: /s/ Andreas Rouvé
Andreas Rouvé
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Andreas Rouvé

Andreas Rouvé

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief

Accounting Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie Director
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John Beattie

/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre
Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

AA GROUP (U.S.)�A LLC

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

AA GROUP (U.S.)�B LLC

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Table of Contents 131



/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

AAG IDQ ACQUISITION CORPORATION

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

APPLICA MEXICO HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President, General Counsel, and

Corporate Secretary
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Steven M. Fraundorfer

Steven M. Fraundorfer

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Vice President and Director

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Nathan E. Fagre Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

ARMORED AUTOGROUP INC.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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Nathan E. Fagre

Director

II-9

Edgar Filing: ABERCROMBIE & FITCH CO /DE/ - Form 4

Table of Contents 138



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

ARMORED AUTOGROUP
INTERMEDIATE INC.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Director and Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie Director
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John Beattie

/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

ARMORED AUTOGROUP PARENT INC.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

ARMORED AUTOGROUP SALES INC.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick President
Guy Andrysick (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin Vice President
Douglas L. Martin (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie Director
John Beattie

/s/ Nathan E. Fagre Director
Nathan E. Fagre
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

IDQ ACQUISITION CORP.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick President
Guy Andrysick (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin Vice President
Douglas L. Martin (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie Director
John Beattie

/s/ Nathan E. Fagre Director
Nathan E. Fagre
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

IDQ HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick President
Guy Andrysick (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin Vice President
Douglas L. Martin (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie Director
John Beattie

/s/ Nathan E. Fagre Director
Nathan E. Fagre
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

IDQ OPERATING, INC.

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick President
Guy Andrysick (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin Vice President
Douglas L. Martin (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie Director
John Beattie

/s/ Nathan E. Fagre Director
Nathan E. Fagre
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

NATIONAL MANUFACTURING MEXICO
A, LLC

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President, Secretary and General
Counsel

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Philip S. Szuba

Philip S. Szuba

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Brent A. Esplin

Brent A. Esplin

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

SPECTRUM BRANDS, INC. Sole Member
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By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Name: Nathan E. Fagre
Title: Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

NATIONAL MANUFACTURING
MEXICO B, LLC

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President, Secretary and General
Counsel

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Philip S. Szuba

Philip S. Szuba

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Brent A. Esplin

Brent A. Esplin

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

SPECTRUM BRANDS, INC. Sole Member
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By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Name: Nathan E. Fagre
Title: Senior Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

NATIONAL OPENINGS, LLC

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Philip S. Szuba

Philip S. Szuba

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Brent A. Esplin

Brent A. Esplin

Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

SPECTRUM BRANDS, INC. Sole Member
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By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Name: Nathan E. Fagre
Title: Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

ROV HOLDING, INC.

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Senior Vice President and Secretary

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Andreas Rouvé

Andreas Rouvé

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Executive Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

ROV INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LLC

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President and Secretary

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Andreas Rouvé

Andreas Rouvé

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Executive Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

ROV HOLDING, INC. Sole Member
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By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Name: Nathan E. Fagre
Title: Senior Vice President and Secretary
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

SALIX ANIMAL HEALTH, LLC

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Senior Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Randy Lewis

Randy Lewis

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Vice President and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

SPECTRUM BRANDS, INC. Sole Member
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By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Name: Nathan E. Fagre
Title: Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

SB/RH HOLDINGS, LLC

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Senior Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Andreas Rouvé

Andreas Rouvé

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Accounting Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

SPECTRUM BRANDS HOLDING, INC. Sole Member
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By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Name: Nathan E. Fagre
Title: Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

SCHULTZ COMPANY

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Randy Lewis

Randy Lewis

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Robert D. Miller

Robert D. Miller

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

STP PRODUCTS MANUFACTURING
COMPANY

By:  /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title
/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

THE ARMOR ALL/STP PRODUCTS
COMPANY

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Guy Andrysick

Guy Andrysick

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Douglas L. Martin

Douglas L. Martin

Vice President

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Middleton, State of Wisconsin, on the 21st day of September, 2015.

UNITED INDUSTRIES CORPORATION

By: /s/ Nathan E. Fagre
Nathan E. Fagre
Vice President and Assistant Secretary

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints John Beattie or Nathan E. Fagre or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy and
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any
and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and exhibits thereto
and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates, instruments, agreements and
other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on and file any supplement to
any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any subsequent registration statement
filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (iv) take any and all actions which
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent, proxy and attorney-in-fact full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or appropriate to be done, as fully for
all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving, ratifying and confirming all that such
agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed
below on September 21, 2015 by the following persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Randy Lewis

Randy Lewis

President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Robert D. Miller

Robert D. Miller

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John Beattie

John Beattie

Director
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/s/ Nathan E. Fagre

Nathan E. Fagre

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit 2.1 Acquisition Agreement, dated October 8, 2012, by and between Spectrum Brands, Inc. and
Stanley Black & Decker, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on October 12, 2012).

Exhibit 2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger Acquisition Agreement, dated as of April 28, 2015 between
Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc., Armored AutoGroup Parent Inc., Ignite Merger Sub, Inc. and
Avista Capital Partners II GP, LLC, as representative for the shareholders and optionholders of
Armored AutoGroup Parent Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on April 29, 2015).

Exhibit 3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Spectrum Brands, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands,
Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.2* Amended and Restated Bylaws of Spectrum Brands, Inc.

Exhibit 3.3* Certificate of Formation of AA Group (U.S.)�A LLC.

Exhibit 3.4* Limited Liability Company Agreement of AA Group (U.S.)�A LLC.

Exhibit 3.5* Certificate of Formation of AA Group (U.S.)�B LLC.

Exhibit 3.6* Limited Liability Company Agreement of AA Group (U.S.)�B LLC.

Exhibit 3.7* Certificate of Incorporation of AAG IDQ Acquisition Corporation.

Exhibit 3.8* Bylaws of AAG IDQ Acquisition Corporation.

Exhibit 3.9 Certificate of Incorporation of Applica Mexico Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.5 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands,
Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.10 Bylaws of Applica Mexico Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3,
2013).

Exhibit 3.11* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Armored AutoGroup Inc.

Exhibit 3.12* By-laws of Armored AutoGroup Inc.

Exhibit 3.13* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Armored AutoGroup Intermediate Inc.

Exhibit 3.14* By-laws of Armored AutoGroup Intermediate Inc.

Exhibit 3.15* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Armored AutoGroup Parent Inc.

Exhibit 3.16* Amended and Restated By-laws of Armored AutoGroup Parent Inc.

Exhibit 3.17* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Armored AutoGroup Sales Inc.

Exhibit 3.18* By-laws of Armored AutoGroup Sales Inc.

Exhibit 3.19* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IDQ Acquisition Corp.

Exhibit 3.20* By-laws of IDQ Acquisition Corp.
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Exhibit 3.21* Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IDQ Holdings, Inc.

Exhibit 3.22* By-laws of IDQ Holdings, Inc.
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Exhibit 3.23* Certificate of Incorporation of IDQ Operating, Inc.

Exhibit 3.24* Amended and Restated Bylaws of IDQ Operating, Inc.

Exhibit 3.25 Certificate of Formation of National Manufacturing Mexico A, LLC (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.19 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by
Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.26 Limited Liability Company Agreement of National Manufacturing Mexico A, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.20 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC
by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.27 Certificate of Formation of National Manufacturing Mexico B, LLC (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.21 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by
Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.28 Limited Liability Company Agreement of National Manufacturing Mexico B, LLC (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.22 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC
by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.29* Certificate of Organization of National Openings, LLC.

Exhibit 3.30* Amended & Restated Operating Agreement of National Openings, LLC.

Exhibit 3.31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of ROV Holding, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.25 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by
Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.32 Bylaws of ROV Holding, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.26 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3,
2013).

Exhibit 3.33 Certificate of Formation of ROV International Holdings LLC (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.27 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum
Brands, Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.34 Operating Agreement of ROV International Holdings LLC (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.28 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands,
Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.35* Amended and Restated Articles of Organization of Salix Animal Health, LLC.

Exhibit 3.36* Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Salix Animal Health, LLC.

Exhibit 3.37 Certificate of Formation of SB/RH Holdings, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.29 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands,
Inc. on December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.38 Operating Agreement of SB/RH Holdings, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.30
to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on
December 3, 2013).

Exhibit 3.39* Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Schultz Company.

Exhibit 3.40 Bylaws of Schultz Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.32 to the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3, 2013).
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Exhibit 3.41* Certificate of Incorporation of STP Products Manufacturing Company.

Exhibit 3.42* Amended and Restated By-laws of STP Products Manufacturing Company.
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Exhibit 3.43* Certificate of Incorporation of The Armor All/STP Products Company.

Exhibit 3.44* Amended and Restated By-laws of The Armor All/STP Products Company.

Exhibit 3.45* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of United Industries Corporation.

Exhibit 3.46 Bylaws of United Industries Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.36 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 3,
2013).

Exhibit 4.1 Indenture governing Spectrum Brands, Inc.�s 6.375% Senior Notes due 2020 and 6.625% Senior
Notes due 2022, dated as of November 16, 2012, between Spectrum Brands Escrow Corp. and
US Bank National Association, as trustee (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on November 21,
2012).

Exhibit 4.2 Indenture governing Spectrum Brands, Inc.�s 6.125% Senior Notes due 2024, dated as of
December 4, 2014, among Spectrum Brands, Inc., the guarantors named therein and US Bank
National Association, as trustee (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on December 8,
2014).

Exhibit 4.3 Indenture governing Spectrum Brands, Inc.�s 5.750% Senior Notes due 2025, dated as of May 20,
2015, among Spectrum Brands, Inc., the guarantors named therein and US Bank National
Association, as trustee (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on May 20, 2015).

Exhibit 5.1* Opinion of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison, LLP.

Exhibit 5.2* Opinion of Barnes & Thornburg LLP, special Pennsylvania counsel.

Exhibit 5.3* Opinion of Thompson Coburn LLP, special Missouri counsel.

Exhibit 5.4* Opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, special Florida counsel.

Exhibit 8.1* Opinion of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison, LLP regarding certain tax matters.

Exhibit 10.1 2009 Spectrum Brands, Inc. Incentive Plan (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on August 31,
2009).

Exhibit 10.2 Form of Spectrum Brands, Inc. Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2009 Incentive Plan
(filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on October 28, 2009).

Exhibit 10.3 Stockholder Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2010, by and among Harbinger Capital Partners
Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Funds, L.P., Global
Opportunities Breakaway Ltd., and SB/RH Holdings, Inc. (filed by incorporation by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on
February 12, 2010).

Exhibit 10.4 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2010, by and among Spectrum Brands
Holdings, Inc., Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners
Special Situations Fund, L.P., Global Opportunities Breakaway Ltd., Avenue International
Master, L.P., Avenue Investments, L.P., Avenue Special Situations Fund IV, L.P., Avenue
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Special Situations Fund V, L.P. and Avenue-CDP Global Opportunities Fund, L.P. (filed by
incorporation by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the
SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on March 29, 2010).
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Exhibit 10.5 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 4, 2014 by and among Spectrum Brands,
Inc., the guarantors party thereto and the investors listed on the signature pages thereto, with
respect to the 6.125% Notes (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on December 8,
2014).

Exhibit 10.6 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 20, 2015, by and among Spectrum Brands, Inc.,
the guarantors party thereto and the investors listed on the signature pages thereto, with respect to
the 5.750% Notes (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on May 20, 2015).

Exhibit 10.7 Credit Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2015, by and among Spectrum Brands, Inc., SB/RH
Holdings, LLC, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as administrative agent, and the lenders
party thereto from time to time (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on June 23, 2015).

Exhibit 10.8 Security Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2015, by and among Spectrum Brands, Inc., SB/RH
Holdings, LLC, the subsidiary guarantors party thereto from time to time and Deutsche Bank AG
New York Branch, as collateral agent (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on June 23, 2015).

Exhibit 10.9 Loan Guaranty, dated as of June 23, 2015, by and among SB/RH Holdings, LLC, the subsidiary
guarantors party thereto from time to time and Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as
administrative agent and collateral agent (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on June 23, 2015).

Exhibit 10.10 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, entered into as of August 11, 2010, by and
among Spectrum Brands, Inc., Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. and David R. Lumley (filed by
incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on August 17, 2010).

Exhibit 10.11 First Amendment, dated as of November 16, 2010, to the Employment Agreement, dated as of
August 11, 2010, by and among Spectrum Brands, Inc., Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. and
David R. Lumley (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on November 22, 2010).

Exhibit 10.12 Retention Agreement, entered into as of April 29, 2014, by and between Spectrum Brands, Inc.
and Anthony Genito (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on May 5, 2014).

Exhibit 10.13 Employment Agreement, effective June 9, 2008, by and between Spectrum Brands, Inc. and
Anthony L. Genito (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 29, 2008, filed with the SEC by Spectrum
Brands, Inc. on August 8, 2008).

Exhibit 10.14 Amendment to the Employment Agreement, effective as of February 24, 2009, by and between
Spectrum Brands, Inc. and Anthony L. Genito (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit
10.22 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, filed with
the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on December 29, 2009).

Exhibit 10.15 Description of Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement, effective as of August 28,
2009, by and between Spectrum Brands, Inc. and Anthony L. Genito (filed by incorporation by
reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum
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Exhibit 10.16 Third Amendment, dated as of November 16, 2010, to the Employment Agreement, dated as of
June 9, 2008, by and among Spectrum Brands, Inc. and Anthony L. Genito (filed by
incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on November 22, 2010).

Exhibit 10.17 Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2014 between Spectrum Brands, Inc. and Douglas
L. Martin (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on September 2, 2014).

Exhibit 10.18 Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Equity Award Plan (formerly known as the
Russell Hobbs, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Equity Award Plan) (filed by incorporation by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands
Holdings, Inc. on June 16, 2010).

Exhibit 10.19 Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. 2011 Omnibus Equity Award Plan, as amended on January 28,
2014 (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on February 3, 2014).

Exhibit 10.20 Severance Agreement, dated as of November 19, 2012, by and between Spectrum Brands, Inc.
and Nathan E. Fagre (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on November 21, 2012).

Exhibit 10.21 Separation Agreement dated December 28, 2012 between Spectrum Brands, Inc. and John Heil
(filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on January 3, 2012).

Exhibit 10.22 Registered Director�s Agreement, dated as of August 27, 2007, by and between Andreas Rouve
and Rayovac Europe GmbH, as amended on October 1, 2007 (filed by incorporation by reference
to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands
Holdings, Inc. on February 11, 2014).

Exhibit 10.23 Separation Agreement dated September 16, 2013 between Spectrum Brands, Inc. and Terry
Polistina (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands, Inc. on September 20, 2013).

Exhibit 10.24 Transition Employment Agreement dated January 8, 2015, by and between Spectrum Brands,
Inc., Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. and David R. Lumley (filed by incorporation by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands
Holdings, Inc. on February 5, 2015).

Exhibit 10.25 Employment Agreement, dated March 16, 2015, among Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc.,
Spectrum Brands, Inc. and Andreas Rouve (filed by incorporation by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC by Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc. on
May 1, 2015).

Exhibit 21.1* Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Exhibit 23.1* Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Exhibit 23.2* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditor.

Exhibit 23.3* Consent of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP (included as part of Exhibits 5.1 and
8.1).

Exhibit 23.4* Consent of Barnes & Thornburg LLP (included as part of Exhibit 5.2).
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Exhibit 23.5* Consent of Thompson Coburn LLP (included as part of Exhibit 5.3).
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Exhibit 23.6* Consent of Quarles & Brady LLP (included as part of Exhibit 5.4).

Exhibit 24.1* Power of Attorney (included in signature pages).

Exhibit 25.1* Statement of eligibility and qualification on Form T-1 of U.S. Bank National Association, with
respect to the indenture governing the 6.125% Senior Notes due 2024.

Exhibit 25.2* Statement of eligibility and qualification on Form T-1 of U.S. Bank National Association, with
respect to the indenture governing the 5.750% Senior Notes due 2025.

Exhibit 99.1* Letter of Transmittal.

Exhibit 99.2* Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

Exhibit 99.3* Letter to Registered Holders.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 101.INS to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, filed with the SEC by SB/RH
Holdings, LLC on November 21, 2014, and Exhibit 101.INS to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2015, filed with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings,
LLC on August 6, 2015).

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 101.SCH
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, filed with the
SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on November 21, 2014 and Exhibit 101.SCH to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2015, filed with the SEC by SB/RH
Holdings, LLC on August 6, 2015).

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 101.CAL to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2014, filed with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on November 21, 2014 and Exhibit 101.CAL
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2015, filed with the
SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on August 6, 2015).

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Document (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
101.DEF to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, filed
with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on November 21, 2014 and Exhibit 101.DEF to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2015, filed with the SEC
by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on August 6, 2015).

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
101.LAB to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, filed
with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on November 21, 2014 and Exhibit 101.LAB to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2015, filed with the SEC
by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on August 6, 2015).

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 101.PRE to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2014, filed with the SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on November 21, 2014 and Exhibit 101.PRE
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 28, 2015, filed with the
SEC by SB/RH Holdings, LLC on August 6, 2015).

* Filed herewith.
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